Public Document Pack

7=>> NORTH
YORKSHIRE
COUNCIL

Agenda

Meeting:  General Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee

To: Councillors Derek Bastiman, Tim Grogan and
Subash Sharma.

Date: Tuesday, 7 January 2025

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Committee Room, Town Hall, St Nicholas Street,

Scarborough, YO11 2HG

Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those items
taken in open session. Please contact the named democratic services officer supporting
this committee if you have any queries.

You may also be interested in subscribing to updates about this or any other North
Yorkshire Council committee.

Recording is allowed at Council, committee and sub-committee meetings which are open
to the public. Please give due regard to the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording
and photography at public meetings. Anyone wishing to record is asked to contact, prior to
the start of the meeting, the named democratic services officer supporting this committee.
We ask that any recording is clearly visible to anyone at the meeting and that it is non-
disruptive.

Business

1. Election of Chair
To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting.

2. Apologies for absence
3. Disclosures of interest
Councillors are invited to declare at this point any disclosable pecuniary interests they

have in items appearing on this agenda, including the nature of those interests.

4. Procedure for meeting (Pages 3-4)
To confirm the procedure to be followed at the meeting.

Page 1

OFFICIAL


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fedemocracy.northyorks.gov.uk%2Fielogon.aspx%3Flp%3D1%26RPID%3D4447149%26HPID%3D4447149%26Forms%3D1%26META%3DmgSubscribeLogon&data=05%7C02%7Cjane.graham1%40northyorks.gov.uk%7Ca6fe76fce0144e33d3d108dc8601c7e5%7Cad3d9c73983044a1b487e1055441c70e%7C0%7C0%7C638532589411394055%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HunJhKq7JlVIcPphZInDjK2T7nLX0t7FiZj6HaSKwt0%3D&reserved=0

5. Cancellation of the General Safety Certificate for Whitby Town (Pages 5 - 106)
Football Club

To receive a report from the Corporate Director of Environment.

Agenda Contact Officer:

Nicki Lishman, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Email: democraticservices.east@northyorks.gov.uk
Tel: 01653 638476

Monday, 23 December 2024

Page 2

OFFICIAL


mailto:democraticservices.east@northyorks.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 4
7> NORTH
@YORKSHIRE
COUNCIL

General Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee

Procedure

Introduction

1. The Sub-Committee will conduct its hearings fairly, observing the basic rules of
natural justice.

2. Each hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Chair and cross
examination will not be permitted unless the Sub-Committee considers that cross
examination is necessary.

3. Hearings will be held in public but the Sub-Committee may decide to exclude the
public from all or part of a hearing where it considers the public interest in doing so
outweighs the public interest in the hearing taking place in public. In this context
“public” includes any party to the hearing or any representative of a party.

Procedure
4. At the beginning of the meeting the Chair shall:-

a) ask those present to introduce themselves;

b) explain the procedure;

c) ask the parties whether they wish permission for another person to appear at
the hearing.

5. The Sub-Committee will consider requests from the parties for permission for other
persons to appear at the meeting. Such permission will not be unreasonably
withheld.

6. The Chair will conduct the hearing taking representations from the parties in the
following order:

a) the Licensing Officer who will outline the background to the case. The
Licensing Officer’s role is to provide factual information to the Sub-
Committee.

b) the applicant/licence holder (including any person appointed to represent the
party or any other persons who have been given permission to assist the

party).

c) any party making representations (including any person appointed to
represent the party or any persons who have been given permission to assist
the party).

Page 3



7. Before determination, the applicant/licence holder will be given the final opportunity
to address the Sub-Committee.

8. Each party will be given an equal maximum period of time in which to put forward
any additional information requested by the Council, to question other persons (if
given permission by the Sub-Committee) and address the Sub-Committee.

9. The Sub-Committee may exclude disruptive persons in certain circumstances.

10.The Sub-Committee may adjourn the hearing in certain circumstances.

11.The Sub-Committee will ask the parties to withdraw so that it can consider its
determination. In considering its determination, the Sub-Committee may ask its
Legal Advisor to provide it with legal and procedural advice. The nature of this
advice will be notified to the parties.

12.The Sub-Committee will make its determination at the end of the meeting and this
will be confirmed in writing.

Failure of Parties to Attend a Hearing

13. If a party has informed the Council that they do not intend to attend or be
represented at a hearing, the hearing may proceed in their absence.

14.Where a party has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing the
Sub-Committee may:

a) where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the
hearing to a specified date; or

b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence.

15.Where the hearing is held in the absence of a party, the authority shall consider at
the hearing of the application, representation or notice made by that party.

16.Where a hearing is adjourned to a specified date the Council will notify the parties
of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned.

April 2023

Pade 4



Agenda Iltem 5

North Yorkshire Council
General Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee

7 January 2025

Cancellation of the General Safety Certificate for Whitby Town Football Club

Report of the Corporate Director — Environment

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

11 This report asks the Sub-Committee to approve the revocation of the previous determination
that the Main Stand, The Football Stadium, Upgang Lane, Whitby, North Yorkshire (the Main
Stand) is a regulated stand.

1.2 If the revocation is approved, to cancel the General Safety Certificate held by Whitby Town
Football Club in respect of the Main Stand.

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 Part Ill of the Fire Safety and Safety at Places of Sports Act 1987 applies to sports grounds
which:

(a) Provides covered accommodation in stands for spectators, and
(b) Is not a designated sports ground.
(Whitby Town Football Club is not a designated sports ground).

2.2 A safety certificate under Part Il is required in respect of the use of each stand which
provides covered accommodation for 500 or more spectators to view activities at the
ground.

Such a stand is referred to as a ‘regulated stand’.

2.3 Whitby Town Football Club (the Club) holds a General Safety Certificate issued under Part
Il of the Fire Safety and Safety at Places of Sports Act 1987, in respect of the Main Stand,
which is a regulated stand. This was last issued on 19 April 2024.

2.4 A General Safety Certificate has been in place in respect of the Main Stand since March
2006. At the time the Main Stand was referred to as the West Stand and determined to be a
regulated stand.

2.5 The Club contacted North Yorkshire Council on 4 October 2024 regarding plans to cancel
their General Safety Certificate.

3.0 CANCELLATION OF THE GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

3.1 On 23 October 2024, an officer from North Yorkshire Council counted the seats in the Main

Stand. The Main Stand comprised of 495 seats and a further six spaces for disabled
spectators and six seats for their companions, immediately in front of the Main Stand.
These spaces and seats are covered and therefore, they are included in the capacity
calculations for the Main Stand. The total capacity was therefore calculated at 507.

Page 5

OFFICIAL




3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

51

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

On 7 November 2024, the Club’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) sent photographic
evidence that seats had been removed from the Main Stand and confirmed their request to
‘deregulate’.

The Club’s CEO has confirmed by ‘deregulate’ the Club is requesting the cancellation of
their General Safety Certificate. The CEO has also confirmed their request is made on
behalf of Whitby Town Football Club.

On 10 December 2024 an officer from the local authority carried out a visual inspection of
the Main Stand and confirmed the capacity was 498. As the capacity of the Main Stand is
now 498, the stand no longer meets the definition of a regulated stand.

Part Ill, Section 29, of the Fire Safety and Safety at Places of Sports Act 1987 covers the
cancellation of a certificate. It states that the local authority who has issued the safety
certificate for a regulated stand at a sports ground —

(a) shall, if at any time it appears to them that the stand in respect of which it was issued is
not or has ceased to be a regulated stand, revoke their previous determination and, by
notice to its holder, cancel the certificate.

A safety certificate may be cancelled, either on the application of the holder or without such
an application.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN AND RESPONSES

The Sports Ground Safety Advisory Group has been made aware of the reduced
accommodation at the Main Stand and the proposal to cancel the safety certificate. The
group includes North Yorkshire Police, North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service, Yorkshire
Ambulance Service. They have raised no objections.

The Sports Ground Safety Authority (SGSA) has been made aware of the reduced
accommodation at the Main Stand and the proposal to cancel the safety certificate. They
have no objection. The SGSA did have an expectation that the Club would discuss their
plans with the local authority and develop a shared understanding in relation to their
continuing support, rights of entry, inspections, and any potential application of sections 10
and 11 of the Safety at Sports Ground Act 1975 Act. To that end a meeting of the Sports
Ground Safety Advisory Group, with the Club’s representative has been arranged for 3
January 2025.

The SGSA has also confirmed the Club’s duties would not be lessened under other
legislation and guidance such as:
e The Safety at Sports Ground Act 1975 Act

e The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and guidance
e The Occupiers Liability Acts.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

There are no alternative options.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this decision apart from officer time.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

No legal implications have been identified.

Page 6

OFFICIAL



8.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

8.1 No equalities implications have been identified.

9.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

9.1 No climate change implications have been identified.

10.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

10.1 No policy implications have been identified.

11.0 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

11.1  Whitby Town Football Club will continue to have duties under other legislation and
guidance, as set out at 4.2 above.

11.2  Whitby Town Football Club must still have regard for the Guide to Safety at Sports
Grounds, published by the Sports Grounds Safety Authority.

11.3 The local authority has powers under Section 10 and 11 of the Safety of Sports Grounds
Act 1975, in respect of all sports grounds, and these will apply in respect of Whitby Town
Football Club in the event that the General Safety Certificate is cancelled. Section 10 allows
the local authority to serve a prohibition notice on a person in respect of a sports ground,
where the risk to spectators is deemed so serious that, until steps have been taken to
reduce it to a reasonable level, admission of spectators to the ground or that part of the
ground ought to be prohibited or restricted. Section 11 provides powers of entry and
inspection.

12.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

12.1 The Main Stand at The Football Stadium, Upgang Lane, Whitby, North Yorkshire no longer
accommodates 500 spectators and therefore does not meet the criteria of a regulated
stand.

13.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)
131 i) Approve the revocation of the previous determination that the Main Stand, The

Football Stadium, Upgang Lane, Whitby, North Yorkshire is a regulated stand.

ii) If the revocation is so approved, cancel the General Safety Certificate for The
Main Stand at The Football Stadium, Upgang Lane, Whitby, North Yorkshire.

APPENDICES:

Appendix A — General Safety Certificate signed April 2024
Appendix B — Appendices to the general safety certificate signed April 2024
Appendix C — General Safety Certificate signed March 2006

Karl Battershy

Corporate Director — Environment
County Hall

Northallerton

11 December 2024

Page 7

OFFICIAL



Report Author — Angela Lacy - Divisional Officer
Presenter of Report — Angela Lacy - Divisional Officer

Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries
or questions.

Page 8

OFFICIAL



APPENDIX A

FIRE SAFETY AND SAFETY OF
PLACES OF SPORT
ACT 1987

GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE
IN RESPECT OF

The Main Stand at The Football Stadium,
Upgang Lane, Whitby, North Yorkshire

ISSUED TO
WHITBY TOWN FOOTBALL CLUB

Rage. 9



APPENDIX A

FIRE SAFETY AND SAFETY OF PLACES OF
SPORTS ACT 1987

GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

ARRANGEMENT

INFORMATION

GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

SCHEDULE A DEFINITIONS

SCHEDULE B STAFF AND CROWD CONTROL

B.1 Safety Officers

B.2 Stewards

B.3 Disabled Persons

B.4 Crowd Control and Policing

SCHEDULE C FIRST AID AND MEDICAL FACILITIES

C.1 Accommodation and Equipment
C.2 Personnel

SCHEDULE D BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND INSTALLATIONS

D.1 Means of Ingress and Egress
D.2 Electrical, Mechanical and Heating Installations
D.3 General

SCHEDULE E FIRE AND FIRE FIGHTING

E.1 General

E.2 Fire Warning System
E.3 Fire Fighting Equipment
E.4 Fire Duties

E.5 Instruction Notices

SCHEDULE F BRIEFING, TESTING AND INSPECTION BY THE HOLDER
F.1 Introduction

F.2 Every Activity
F.3 Every Month

Page:10



SCHEDULE G

APPENDIX 1

APPENDIX 2

APPENDIX 3

APPENDIX 4

APPENDIX 5

APPENDIX 6

APPENDIX 7

APPENDIX 8

APPENDIX 9

APPENDIX 10

APPENDIX 11

APPENDIX 12

APPENDIX 13

APPENDIX 14

APPENDIX A

F.4 Every Three Months

F.5 Every Six Months

F.6 Every Year

F.7 Every Five Years
RECORDS AND CERTIFICATES

G.1 Records to be Kept by the Holder
G.2 Certificates to be Submitted by the Holder to the Council

INDEX OF KEY LOCATIONS

FIRST AID EQUIPMENT

SCHEDULE OF FIRE APPLIANCES

PERMITTED NUMBERS OF SPECTATORS

EXIT GATES, DOOR NUMBERS AND WIDTH OF EXITS
LOCATION OF EMERGENCY AND CONFERENCE TELEPHONES

TEST LOADS AND STRUCTURAL TESTING PROCEDURES FOR
BARRIERS ETC

STAFF INSTRUCTION NOTICES AND EMERGENCY
PROCEDURES

LOCATIONS AND NUMBERS OF STEWARDS

PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT WITHIN CONTROL CENTRES
SPECIFIED ACTIVITIES

SAFETY CONTROL AND POLICE FACILITIES

GENERAL SPORTSGROUND ARRANGEMENT DRAWINGS

DOCUMENT KEPT WITH THE GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

Rage 11



APPENDIX A

SAFETY OF SPORTS GROUNDS ACT 1975 AS

AMENDED 1987
INFORMATION

It is important to know all the provisions of the Safety of Sports Grounds Act 1975,
which are relevant to stadia within its scope. These are explained, without legal
force, in the current edition of the Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds (Green Guide),
obtainable from the Sports Grounds Safety Authority (SGSA). The following points
are particularly important but reference should be made to the Act itself for
authoritative information.

Right of Entry and Inspection

Section 11 of the Act gives to authorised officers the power to enter and inspect a
sports ground and to make any inquiries as are considered necessary for the
purposes of the Act. Authorised officers also have power to examine records of
attendance at the sportsground and records relating to the maintenance of safety at
the sportsground.

Alterations and Extensions

Section 8 of the Act requires notice to be given to the Council before work is begun of
any proposed alteration or extension to the stadium.

Offences and Penalties
For the following offences, that is to say:-

a) Contravening any term or condition of this Certificate (otherwise than in
pursuance of a prohibition notice), admitting spectators to the sports ground
at a time when no application for a Safety Certificate has been made or where
a Certificate does not relate to the current sports ground or has been
withdrawn, surrendered or cancelled; or in contravention of a prohibition
notice, the penalty is, on summary conviction, a fine not exceeding the
statutory maximum or, on conviction on indictment, a fine or imprisonment for
a term not exceeding two years, or both.

b) Knowingly or recklessly making a false statement or producing, signing,
furnishing or otherwise making use of a document containing a false
statement, or

C) Failing to give notice of an alteration or extension to the sports ground or
obstructing an authorised officer, the penalty is on summary conviction, a fine
not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale.

Prohibition Notices

Section 10 of the Act (as amended) provides that if the Council is of the opinion that
the admission of spectators to a sports ground or any part of a sports ground
involves or will involve a risk to them so serious that, until steps have been taken to
reduce it to a reasonable level, admission of spectators to the ground or that part of
the ground ought to be prohibited or restricted, the Council may serve a notice

Page:l2



Vi.

Vii.

APPENDIX A

(referred to as a "prohibition notice") on the holder of the Certificate or the person
responsible for the management of the ground, prohibiting or restricting the
admission of spectators.

Appeals

Section 5(3) of the Act (as amended) provides that an interested party may appeal to
a Magistrates' Court against the inclusion of anything in, or the omission of anything
from, a Safety Certificate.

Transfer of the Certificate

If the holder of the Safety Certificate ceases to be the person responsible for the

management of the ground, an application must be made to the Council for the
transfer of the Certificate to some other qualified person.

NOTE: No variation of the terms and conditions of the Certificate will be permitted
other than by formal revision.

Rage. 13



APPENDIX A

SAFETY OF SPORTS GROUNDS ACT 1975

Fire Safety and Safety of Places of
Sport Act 1987

GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

Whitby Town Football Ground

In exercise of the powers conferred by the Safety of Sports Ground Act 1975, the
Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987 and all other enabling powers, the
Council of the

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNCIL
("the Council), hereby issues to:-
Whitby Town Football Club

("the Holder"), this General Safety Certificate in respect of The Football Ground,
Upgang Lane, Whitby, North Yorkshire.

being a sports ground holding a regulated stand as requiring a General Safety
Certificate.

This Certificate includes the Appendices, Schedules and Drawings attached hereto.

The words used in this Certificate and the Schedules attached hereto shall have the
meaning assigned to them by the Safety of Sports Grounds Act, 1975 the Fire Safety
and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987 and Schedule A.

The Holder shall retain control over the whole and each part of the sports ground and
shall take all necessary precautions for the reasonable safety of all people at the
sports ground when hosting an event. The responsibility for the safety of people at
the sports ground lies at all times with the Holder. The Holder shall appoint a person
to be responsible for event safety policy and for producing a written statement of
event safety policy for all people at an event at the sports ground. This shall outline
the chain of command, and cover the safety objectives and the means of achieving
them and shall identify the steps taken to ensure that it is known and understood by
all staff and voluntary workers who may be involved in ground operations. The
Holder shall also ensure that the policy is kept under review and revised as
necessary and a copy shall be kept with this Certificate. The Holder shall forward a
copy of the policy to the Council.

The Holder shall ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of this Certificate
at all times the sports ground is in use for a specified activity. In relation to a specified
activity, this Certificate will be in operation TWO hours before the start and TWO
hours after the end of the activity. The responsibility for safety of those present at the
sports ground lies at all times with the Holder.

Page:14



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

APPENDIX A

The Holder shall notify the Council in writing within 14 days before any change of
circumstances affecting this Certificate.

The Holder shall assess in writing, the risk of incidents prejudicing public safety or
disrupting normal operations and produce a plan of action to deal with all
contingencies. The plan of action shall be produced in consultation with the Police,
the Fire and Rescue Service, the Ambulance Service and the Council and a copy
shall be kept with this Certificate. The plan of action shall cover all reasonably
foreseeable contingencies up to and including the need for partial and/or total
evacuation of the sports ground and shall identify appropriate individuals and their
respective tasks, including precautions against electrical or mechanical failure. The
Holder shall regularly review, test and keep up to date the plan of action and shall
forward a copy to the Council.

The Holder shall also carry out training exercises at least once a year so as to ensure
the emergency procedures as set out in the plan of action operate correctly and that
a debrief of actions found to be necessary in the preceding operational al2 months is
taken into account and an assessment of whether further actions or training will be
necessary to improve action plans. The Holder shall notify the Council, the police
and the other emergency services not less than 14 days before a training exercise is
to take place to enable them to observe the standards of staff training. Details of
training exercises, including its duration, the instruction provided and the personnel
involved shall be recorded by the Holder.

The use of the sports ground for spectator events under this Certificate is restricted
to those activities specified in Appendix 11, and is subject to the terms and conditions
set out in this Certificate.

The Holder shall give Notice to the Council, Police, Fire and Rescue Service and
Ambulance Service of all forthcoming specified activities, and in particular, not less
than 35 days’ notice before the sports ground is used for activities specified in
Appendix 11 and the Council's consent obtained and any conditions complied with
before such use.

The Holder shall ensure that the maximum number of spectators that may be
admitted at any one time to the sports ground and to each part thereof shall not
exceed the capacities specified in Appendix 4 and shall also ensure that the
measures for controlling crowds prescribed in this Certificate are observed.

The Holder shall provide equipment, permanent staff, stewards and others, and shall
monitor, direct, guide, control and assist those persons present at the ground during
specified activities and as set out in Schedule B.

The Holder shall provide first aid and medical staff, equipment, facilities and
accommodation as set out in Schedule C and Appendix 2.

The Holder shall ensure that all buildings and structures, including means of ingress
and egress, and all installations, including electrical, mechanical and heating,
referred to in this Certificate are at all relevant times maintained unobstructed in good
repair and in such condition as to fulfil safely their required functions and shall
comply with the requirements of Schedule D. The Holder shall also control the use of
such buildings, structures and installations in such a manner that no person is put at
risk.

The Holder shall take all reasonable precautions to prevent the outbreak and spread

Rage. 15



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

221

23.

APPENDIX A

of fire, shall take whatever measures that are reasonably practicable to ensure the
safety of spectators should fire break out; shall maintain equipment and train staff to
deal with the activation of smoke/fire detection systems, and an actual outbreak of
fire, and shall comply with the requirements of Schedule E.

The Holder shall carry out the inspections and testing detailed in Schedule F at the
frequency indicated, or such shorter period as may be necessary to ensure the
reasonable safety of all people present at the ground, and the results of the
inspections and testing shall be recorded.

The Holder shall keep the records specified in Schedule G, and those records shall
be available for inspection by the Council's authorised officers at all reasonable
times.

The Holder shall obtain and submit to the Council the certificates specified in
Schedule G.

The Holder shall appoint a Safety Officer who shall be of sufficient competence,
status and authority to take responsibility for safety at the sports ground and be able
to authorise and supervise safety measures. The Holder shall ensure that the
nominated person is accountable to the most Senior Management or the Board of
Directors to whom he/she will have direct access on safety matters. The Holder shall
set out in writing the duties of the Safety Officer and the functions of his/her post, and
a copy of the job description shall be kept with this Certificate.

The Holder shall nominate a Safety Officer and Deputy Officer one of whom shall be
in charge of the sports ground during the whole time it is in use for any specified
activities within categories Appendix 11. The nominations shall be made to the
Council in writing.

The Holder may nominate a replacement Safety Officer who shall be a duly
authorised officer of WHITBY TOWN FOOTBALL CLUB or nominate a replacement
Deputy Safety Officer. The nominations shall be made to the Council in writing.

Unless a nominated Safety Officer or Deputy Safety Officer whose appointment has
been notified to the Council, is present, the capacity of the sports ground will be zero.

The Holder will ensure that all directly employed in-house stewards undertaking
licensable activities, as defined in the Private Security Industry Act 2001, shall be
subject to initial and ongoing vetting every three years and comprising:

a) Identify Check informed by relevant gov.uk guidance.
b) Standard Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check (criminal records check).

Such initial and ongoing vetting will be undertaken in accordance with relevant
guidance and best practice, including SGSA policy guidance on the SIA sports
ground exemption.

The Holder may choose to employ agency stewards to undertake licensable activities
as defined in the Private Security Industry Act 2001 to deliver some or all of the agreed
stewarding plan to host designated football matches (as defined in SI 2000 No 3331)
at the ground. In such circumstances, the Holder shall undertake checks in advance to
satisfy themselves that those agency stewards undertaking licensable activities at the
ground each hold a valid and appropriate Security Industry Authority (SIA) licence.

Page:l6



24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

APPENDIX A

No alteration or addition shall be made to the sports ground or its structures or
installations without the prior written consent of the Council. Execution of any work
for which consent has been granted shall be carried out to the satisfaction of the
Council.

Written notice shall be given to the Council of any proposed alteration or addition,
and such notice shall be accompanied by two sets of:

a) drawings at a scale of 1:100; and

b) such other drawings and calculations as are necessary to give full details, or are
further required by the Council.

This Certificate is issued without prejudice to other legislation controlling the
construction or use of sports grounds or buildings or otherwise affecting the Holder
and does not invalidate any statutory obligation upon the Holder. The specific
requirements of this Certificate shall not be regarded as the limit of the obligation
placed on the Holder to take all necessary precautions for the reasonable safety of all
people admitted to the sports ground.

The Holder shall draw up and keep up to date plans showing the layout of the sports
ground, buildings, equipment, and all details considered necessary by the Council in
connection with this Certificate and shall upon request supply the Council with
copies.

This General Safety Certificate is effective from the date of signature and replaces
all previously issued General Safety Certificates for the ground.

SIGNED
Callum McKeon

Assistant Director of Regulatory Services, Registration, Bereavement,
Coroners Service

Date: 19 April 2024

North Yorkshire Council

Growth, Planning and Trading Standards Service

3 Racecourse Lane, Northallerton. DL7 8AD.

Rage. 17



A.1 Definitions

A.1.1 ‘specified activity’

A.1.2 'the Police'

A.1.3 ‘the Fire and Rescue

Service’

A.1.4 ‘the Ambulance

Service’

A.1.5 'the staff’

A.1.6 'the plans'

A.1.7 'the sports ground’

A.1.8 'fire-resisting’

A.1.9 'non-combustible’

A.1.10 'surface spread of
flame classification’

APPENDIX A

SCHEDULE A

DEFINITIONS

means any of the activities listed in Appendix 11; and shall
be construed as including the whole period when
spectators are in the sports ground.

means the Commissioner of Police/Chief Constable for
North Yorkshire Police or such other officer designated by
them.

means the Chief Officer of the North Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service, or such other Fire and Rescue Officer
designated by them.

means the Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS)
Accountable Emergency Officer (AEQ) represented by
YAS EPRR Managers Service, or such other officer
designated by them.

means the Holder, the Safety Officer and all persons under
their control who are engaged in duties during a specified
activity relating to the management of the sports ground
and the safety, direction and control of spectators; and
shall include those staff employed by franchise holders
etc.

means the documents attached to this Certificate marked
'plans referred to in the General Safety Certificate' and any
other document or documents which may be added
thereto.

means the sports ground known as The Football Stadium
and the means of access to it as shown on plan SC03

means the construction is capable of resisting the action of
fire for not less than 30 minutes, or such other period as
may be specified by the Council, in accordance with the
conditions of test of the appropriate part of BS.476 current
at the date of this Certificate.

means material capable of being classified as
non-combustible if subjected to the test for
non-combustibility prescribed in the appropriate part of
BS.476 current at the date of this Certificate, or such other
material or combination of materials as the Council
accepts as being non-combustible.

means the class into which a material falls when tested for

surface spread of flame in accordance with the appropriate
part of BS.476 current at the date of this Certificate or as

Page:18



A.1.11 'normal lighting'

A.1.12 'maintained normal
lighting’

A.1.13 'emergency lighting’

A.1.14 'escape lighting’

A.1.15 'maintained escape
lighting’

A.1.16 'non-maintained
escape lighting’

A.1.17 'emergency’

A.1.18 Safety Officer's
Control Point

A.1.19 ‘child’

A.1.20 ‘steward’

A.1.21 ‘medical practitioner’

APPENDIX A

defined in the Approved Document to Part B (Fire Safety)
of the Building Regulations 2010 (as amended 2017).

means all lighting, other than escape lighting, permanently
installed throughout the sports ground. The term may
include purely decorative lighting, but not lighting installed
solely for advertising purposes.

Note: Also known as 'General Lighting.'

means a portion of the normal lighting which remains
illuminated in the absence of natural daylight during
specified activities to allow free movement within the
sports ground and exits therefrom.

means lighting provided from a source independent of the
normal lighting supply.

means the portion of emergency lighting, provided in the
absence of natural daylight, to allow free movement within
the sports ground and exits therefrom.

means a system of escape lighting in which the lamps
remain illuminated during specified activities to allow free
movement within the sports ground and exits therefrom.

means a system of escape lighting in which the lamps are
illuminated automatically only on failure of the normal

lighting supply.

means a monitored telephone system with dedicated
telephone points around the sports ground and connected
to the sports ground control room.

(also referred to as Control Room) means a room
containing fire alarm warning systems, turnstile monitoring
equipment, public address system, emergency telephone
system and general communication equipment, and
provided with a permanent audio link to the Police Control
Room (where appropriate).

means a person who has not attained the age of 17 years,
and the word ‘children’ shall be construed accordingly.

means a person trained, or being trained, to a recognised
national standard, employed or contracted by
management to act in accordance with the general
recommendation of the Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds
and the specific requirements of this Certificate.

(also referred to as crowd or event doctor) means a
gualified medical practitioner, registered with the General
Medical Council, who has received training in pre-hospital
(immediate) care and major incident management.

Rage. 19



A.1.22 ‘paramedic’

APPENDIX A

means a person who holds a current state registration by
the Health Professional Council (HCPC) and who has
immediate access to the appropriate level of specialist
equipment, including drug therapy

A paramedic crew, as a minimum, consists of a
paramedic registered to the HCPC and an ambulance
technician or ambulance personnel

a paramedic plus an ambulance technician registered with
the HCPD.

Page:20



B.1

B.1.1

B.1.2

B.1.3

B.1.4

B.1.5

B.2

B.2.1

B.2.2

APPENDIX A

SCHEDULE B
STAFF AND CROWD CONTROL

Safety Officers

A Control Point is to be provided and shall meet requirements in respect of its
location, size, facilities and equipment in line with sections the current Guide to
Safety at Sports Grounds (Green Guide).

The Holder shall ensure that the Safety Officer is responsible for the checks,
inspections, testing, training, recording, remedial works, and all matters relating
to peoples safety and that they are carried out promptly and effectively.

The Holder shall ensure that the Safety Officer examines and signs all records
that the Holder is required to maintain, and shall countersign all records required
by Schedule G.

The Holder shall ensure that the Duty Safety Officer (who shall be either the
Safety Officer or the Deputy Safety Officer) takes responsibility for all safety
matters, inspections, tests and training immediately prior to, during and after
every specified activity, and shall sign all records which are required by Schedule
G of this Certificate to be made before each specified activity.

The Duty Safety Officer shall be easily identifiable and shall not be engaged in
any other task which will prevent him/her from exercising the sole duty of safety
during a specified activity. He/she shall be in duty at the sports ground and
contactable at all times during a specified activity by staff at the Safety Officer's
Control Point.

The name of the Duty Safety Officer shall be displayed on a board adjacent to the
First Aid Room and Control Point before every specified activity.

Stewards

At each specified activity the Holder shall draw up a code of conduct for Stewards
and provide a Chief Steward and such number of Steward Supervisors and
Stewards which the Holder considers sufficient. These numbers and their
deployment locations shall be recorded in the Stewarding Plan and be available
for inspection. All Stewards shall be fit and active and have the maturity,
character and temperament to carry out the duties required of them. They should
be able to understand and communicate verbal and written instructions in
English. In addition to the Stewards required to control each exit gate and other
key points in no case shall the number of Stewards be less than 1 to every 250
spectators or part thereof attending that specified activity. [If a self-contained
part of the sports ground is closed to spectators, stewards need not be provided
for that part.]

Each Steward shall be readily recognisable with the same high visibility and

distinctly coloured and numbered surcoat or tabard (or such other clothing
approved in advance by the Council) worn outside his/her clothing.

Rage 21



B.2.3

B.2.4

B.2.5

B.2.6

APPENDIX A

The Chief Steward and each Steward Supervisor shall be readily recognisable by
the wearing of a high visibility surcoat or tabard which is distinctive from that worn
by the Stewards.

All stewards employed at the sports ground shall at least be trained and
assessed in accordance with the recommendations of the current Guide to Safety
at Sports Grounds. Stewards are required to complete their training, assessment
and qualifications within 12 months. Stewards should not work unsupervised until
they have undertaken the necessary induction training specified in the current
Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds and have attended four events accompanied
by a qualified steward. Each steward should be provided with a safety handbook
setting out their duties and responsibilities. Visiting Stewards shall arrive before
the ground is open to the public and in time to be fully briefed as to the
construction and configuration of the ground, the safety arrangements and their
specific duties.

Stewards shall be responsible for:

a) controlling or directing spectators who are entering or leaving the ground,
to help achieve an even flow of people to the viewing areas;

b) appraising crowd densities, recognising signs of crowd distress and
reacting to crowd dynamics so as to help ensure safe dispersal of
spectators on standing areas;

c) patrolling the ground to deal with any emergencies, e.g. raising alarms or
tackling the early stages of fires;

d) staffing entrances, exits to and from the viewing accommodation and
other strategic points, especially exit doors and exit gates from the ground
which are not continuously open whilst the ground is in use;

e) searching spectators (under ground regulations, properly drawn to their
attention);

f) assisting Police as appropriate or as requested with crowd control;

Q) undertaking specific duties in an emergency or raise the alarm and take
the necessary immediate action;

h) understanding their general responsibilities towards health and safety;
i) carrying out pre-event safety checks;

i) assisting in the safe operation of the ground, not to view the specified
activity taking place;

k) recognising and responding appropriately to medical incidents

)] undertaking duties allocated by the Duty Safety Officer.

For each self-contained compound or each terrace area there shall be a Steward
whose sole duty is to monitor the crowd conditions in that area for possible

overcrowding or distress and report in accordance with agreed procedures. Any
Steward employed for this particular duty must be provided with a personal radio

Page:22



B.2.7

B.2.8

B.2.9

B.2.10

B.2.11

B.2.12

B.2.13

B.2.14

B.2.15

B.3

B.3.1

B.3.2

APPENDIX A

providing immediate communication with the Duty Safety Officer and/or Control
Point. This requirement shall not apply to any standing area where the
attendance does not exceed one third of that area's maximum permitted capacity
or 2,000, whichever is the lower.

Before beginning duty at a specified activity, each Steward shall be briefed
thoroughly, be handed a copy of his/her instructions and be made fully aware of
his/her general responsibilities and his/her duties in the event of an emergency.
Records shall be kept of such briefings as specified in Schedule G. De-briefing
of Stewards shall take place after the specified activity to ensure that incidents or
problems are referred to the Safety Officer for follow up action.

No Steward shall leave his/her place of duty during a specified activity without the
permission of the appropriate Steward Supervisor who shall provide a
replacement Steward before the position is vacated.

Stewards shall be located throughout the sports ground and particularly at key
points where control is most needed, such as in gangways, vomitories, tops of
staircases, gateways onto the pitch or providing access from one part of the
ground to another, and at each exit or entrance.

Each exit shall be staffed during a specified activity and shall be opened
immediately in the event of an emergency and not less than 10 minutes before
the end of the event. Arrangements shall be made to allow spectators who wish
to leave before the above time, to be directed to appropriate exit points,
controlled so as to prevent other persons gaining unauthorised entry.

Each Steward, attendant and member of staff shall be made aware of the
provisions of Section 11 of the Safety of Sports Grounds Act 1975 (as amended)
which authorises certain Council Officers to enter and inspect sports grounds at
any reasonable time, upon production of written authorisation.

Stewards shall give every assistance in an emergency to disabled persons,
particularly those in wheelchairs.

A loudhailer shall be provided for each Steward Supervisor.

All Steward Supervisors shall be told before each specified activity the location of
the Safety Officer's Control Point and the name of the Duty Safety Officer on the
day in question.

No Steward, whether directly employed or supplied by an agency, shall be
deployed without proper training unless accompanied by a Steward who has
been so trained.

Disabled Persons

Wheelchairs used by disabled persons shall be accommodated in the
purpose-built disabled spectator area. Each wheelchair shall be accompanied by
an able bodied adult who shall be capable of assisting the disabled person from
the sports ground and who shall occupy a nearby seat.

The Holder shall ensure that access, circulation and egress routes; amenities,

concessions and toilets; and the accommodation provided for disabled people
are safe, properly designed and managed.

Rage 23



B.4

B.4.1

B.4.2

B.4.3

B.4.4

B.4.5

B.4.6

B.4.7

B.4.8

APPENDIX A

Crowd Control and Policing
Before each specified activity the Holder shall:

a) consult jointly with the Fire and Rescue Service and the Police regarding
the general arrangements for that activity; and

b) notify the Police of every specified activity at least 35 days before such
activity takes place when possible, or such shorter time as the Police may
accept and consult with him/her concerning the attendance of a sufficient
number of Police Officers for the purpose of maintaining lawful and
orderly behaviour among persons attending the sports ground.

The Holder shall aim to secure the attendance at the sports ground of the
appropriate number of Police Officers, as the Police deem appropriate.

The Holder shall use its best endeavours to enter into a written Statement of
Intent with the Police setting out their respective responsibilities for crowd safety.
Any variation in the statement must be agreed in writing in advance of the
specified activity to which it is relevant. It should be noted that the Statement of
Intent is not a contract but an agreement on respective areas of responsibility.

Note: A copy of the Statement of Intent shall be kept with this Certificate and
shall also be forwarded to the Council.

The Holder shall maintain safety control and Police facilities as specified in
Appendix 12.

When considered necessary by the Council, after consultation with the Police and
the Holder, the Holder shall permit entry only by ticket issued or sold before the
day the sports ground is used for that particular specified activity.

The number of tickets issued to spectators for each particular area shall not
exceed the permitted capacity of that area less the number of season tickets
issued and the number of staff, and other non-spectating persons occupying that
area. Each ticket shall specify the gate/turnstile by which the ticket holder shall
enter the sports ground and where possible shall include a simplified,
understandable diagram showing the layout of the sports ground and position of
entrances. Tickets for seats which offer restricted views or are uncovered shall
be marked accordingly and the buyer forewarned.

The Holder shall agree with the Council and the Police the methods to be used
for the segregation of home and visiting spectators.

Sufficient turnstiles or entry points, as shown on location plan ___ shall be
provided and operated to allow the entry of all the spectators to each
self-contained area within one hour at a notional rate of 660 persons per turnstile,
(or other entry point) per hour, or such lower rate as may be determined by the
Council. Each bank of turnstiles shall be individually and conspicuously identified
by colour and number or letter visible to spectators approaching the sports
ground. Each turnstile shall be individually identified by numbers visible from
outside and inside the sports ground. The colour, number or letter on each bank
of turnstiles or turnstile shall correspond with the information given on the tickets
issued for use at that bank of turnstiles or turnstile.

Page:24



B.4.9

B.4.10

B.4.11

B.4.12

B.4.13

B.4.14

B.4.15

B.4.16

B.4.17

APPENDIX A

Note: Where the recorded rate of entry proves to be less than 660 persons per
turnstile per hour, (for example due to the process of searching individuals) that
lower figure shall be used for calculating entry capacity instead.

A public address system shall be provided and operated by a person nominated
by the Holder. The system shall be used for the carrying out of emergency
evacuation procedures for the ground in accordance with Appendix 8.

The public address system shall be capable of communicating information to
areas both outside and inside the ground. Important announcements shall be
preceded by a loud signal and the arrangement prominently advertised in every
programme.

Each gate on an exit route and every gate in any pitch perimeter fence or radial
fence, unless secured in the open position, shall be controlled by a Steward
while spectators are in the sports ground.

An electronic or other suitable spectator counting system shall be maintained and
tested as required in Schedule F to provide continuous monitoring of spectator
numbers in each area described in Appendix 4 so that the Duty Safety Officer
may give instructions to close immediately any gate or turnstile. The number of
spectators admitted shall be readily available at the control point.

Closed circuit television and the associated emergency power supply, shall be
maintained to enable densities outside the ground, within concourse areas,
seating areas and in compounds and other standing areas to be monitored during
every specified activity.

Drinks may only be sold or supplied in plastic or paper beakers or cups; such
beakers or cups may have loose fitting plastic or paper lids but otherwise no drink
may be sold or supplied in closed containers except:

a) with the prior written consent of the Council; or
b) where drink is served at a table accompanying a meal; or

c) in those parts of the sports ground not usually open to members of the
general public.

Attention is drawn to the provisions of the Sporting Events (Control of Alcohol)
Act 1985 as amended by the Public Order Act 1986.

Where and when it is considered necessary, no person shall be permitted to
enter or remain in the sports ground in possession of any glass bottle or metal
can. The Holder shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that this condition is
complied with. See also proviso to paragraph B.4.14 above.

Television cameras, commentary points, camera gantries and the location of
outside broadcast vans, for the broadcast or recording of specified activities, and
including cables and other portable equipment, shall be restricted to the positions
indicated on the approved plans or as otherwise approved in writing by the
Council.

Means of ingress and egress and signage shall be maintained to the satisfaction
of the Council to each part of the sports ground as shown on the attached plans

Rage. 25



B.4.18

B.4.19

B.4.20

APPENDIX A

and as referred to in Schedule D1 to this Certificate.

The parking of vehicles on the sports ground premises shall be restricted to the
positions indicated on the approved plans or as otherwise approved in writing by
the Council.

Copies of the Ground Regulations shall be framed or glazed or otherwise
protected against loss or defacement and shall be displayed in prominent
positions.

No specific activity which is specially presented for children shall take place until

the Council’'s consent has been given. At least 14 days written notice shall be
given to the Council of any intention to provide such a specified activity.

Page:26



C.0

C1

C.li1

Cl12

C.13

C.1l4

C.15

C.16

C.1.7

C.18

APPENDIX A

SCHEDULE C

MEDICAL AND FIRST AID PROVISION

The Holder shall undertake or commission a medical needs assessment from a
competent person or organisation. In undertaking this assessment, the local
ambulance NHS trust, event doctor or event practitioner and first aid providers
should be consulted. From the results of this assessment the Holder shall
produce a medical plan defining the levels of medical and first aid provision for
staff and all people at the sports ground, key details of which are set out in
Appendix 2.

Accommodation and Equipment

The Holder shall provide a First Aid Room (in addition to the sports ground’s own
sportsperson’s medical room) and, adjacent to it, a W.C. suitable for use by
disabled people, together with a wash basin and hot and cold water supply. The
size of the room should comply the requirements of the current Guide to Safety at
Sports Grounds.

The Holder shall provide in the First Aid Room, the equipment and facilities
specified in Appendix 2. In addition, the Holder shall arrange defibrillators to be
present at all specified activities in accordance with the Medical Needs
Assessment.

The First Aid Room shall be accessible to First Aid personnel and the public from
every part of the ground and to ambulances, and there shall be suitable
sign-posting throughout the ground.

The Holder shall provide a Supplementary First Aid Post which may be used
when capacity or near capacity crowds are expected but primarily for the
treatment of casualties in the event of a large scale emergency. The post shall
provide storage for the First Aid equipment listed in Appendix 2.

There shall, in addition, be designated by the Holder a Casualty Clearing Station
(CSS), at a covered location, to be used for triage and accommodation for the
injured in the event of a large scale emergency. The location shall be adjoining,
or as near as possible to, the First Aid Room and shall be exclusively available
for the above uses in the event of any such emergency.

The Holder shall provide sufficient signs to indicate to incoming emergency
vehicles the location of the Casualty Clearing Station (CSS). Such signs shall be
kept in the Main Reception during the course of each specified activity.

The Holder shall clean, heat, light, ventilate and maintain the First Aid
accommodation, which shall be used solely for First Aid purposes. The Holder
shall ensure that all appropriate standards of hygiene are maintained and retain a
cleaning log which should be displayed in the first aid room.

The First Aid accommodation shall be available for First Aid during each specified

Rage. 27



C.1.9

C.2

Cz21

C.22

Cc23

cC24

APPENDIX A

activity.

Instruction notices for contacting the Emergency Services shall be displayed in
the First Aid Room.

Personnel

The Holder shall ensure that suitable and properly trained First Aid personnel are
present at each specified activity in the ratio of at least 1 to every 1,000
anticipated people at the ground (i.e. includes staff) up to 20,000 and thereafter
in the ratio of 1 to 2000 or part thereof, with a minimum of 2 at any event, and
sufficient personnel shall be available before spectators are admitted to a
specified activity.

The Holder shall ensure that, at every specified activity where the number of
spectators is expected to exceed 2,000, an Event Doctor able to manage
accident and emergency situations is present. [NOTE: or where the attendance is
less than 10,000 an Event Practitioner may be acceptable if that can be justified
agreed] The Event Doctor shall have qualifications and training in accordance
with the requirements of the Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds. They shall:

a) be at the ground before the start of the specified activity (see definition in
Clause A.1.1);
b) remain in attendance until all spectators have left and they have been

stood down by the safety office; and

c) be made aware of the location and staffing arrangements of the First Aid
Room(s) and details of the ambulance cover, the local accident and
emergency department's major incident plan and the Council’s
emergency plan.

The whereabouts of the Event Doctor shall be known to the Duty Safety Officer,
First Aid and ambulance staff and to those in the Control Room who shall be able
to make immediate contact with him or her.

At every specified activity where the number of spectators is not expected to
exceed 2,000 the Event Doctor or Event Practitioner need not be present at the
sportsground, but the Holder shall ensure that arrangements are made to enable
them to be summoned immediately to deal with any medical exigency at the
ground. Those arrangements shall be made known to the officers in charge of
the Control Room and the First Aid Room.

The Holder shall make arrangements for the provision of at least one fully
equipped ambulance (either from the NHS or, if from elsewhere, from a source
approved by the Local Health Authority's Chief Ambulance Officer), to be in
attendance at all events with an anticipated crowd of 5,000 or more. Any
additional ambulance cover should be determined after consultation with the
Local Health Authority's Chief Ambulance Officer, but in no case shall the
ambulance provision be less than the following:

Page:28



Anticipated attendance

(a) 5,000 to 25,000

(b) 25,000 to 45,000

(c) 45,000 or more

APPENDIX A

Dedicated ambulance provision

1 Accident and emergency ambulance (fully
equipped and staffed to HCPC registered
paramedic level and be registered with the
Care Quality Commission (CQC), plus:

1 officer provided by the statutory
ambulance authority.

1 Accident and emergency ambulance (with
paramedic crew), plus :

1 officer provided by the statutory
ambulance authority.

1 major incident equipment vehicle and a
paramedic crew

1 control unit

2 Accident and emergency ambulances
(with paramedics crew), plus :

1 officer provided by the statutory
ambulance authority.

1 major incident equipment vehicle and a
paramedic crew

1 control unit

Note: Please see the current Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds for certain exceptions to
above Table where the Medical Plan is able to justify reductions due to suitable alternatives
being available and that measures to transport patients to hospital are in place and detailed

in the medical plan.

Rage. 29



APPENDIX A

SCHEDULE D

BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND INSTALLATIONS

D.1 Means of Ingress and Egress

D.1.1 The means of ingress and egress shall be maintained in good condition and
unobstructed to each part of the sports ground as shown on plan SCO2 and as
specified in Appendix 5; gates and gangways shall be of width specified. The
location of all exit gates shall be as shown on plan SC01 and SC02

D.1.2 Each egress gate referred to in Appendix 5 shall be available for general egress
during any specified activity.

D.1.3 No door or gate forming part of an escape route shall be locked by a key or
fastened in such a way that it cannot easily and immediately be opened by those
using that route in an emergency.

D.14 All exit gates, unless secured in an open position, shall be staffed at all times
while the ground is used by the public. All pitch perimeter gates shall be kept
unlocked whenever the area of the ground behind them is occupied by spectators.

D.15 'WAY OUT' or 'EXIT' notices shall be provided and maintained over each exit, and
exit routes shall be indicated as required by the Council.

D.1.6 All doors and gates on exit routes shall be secured in the fully open position not
less than 10 minutes before the end of the specified activity.

D.1.7 All gates in radial, pitch-perimeter or pitch barrier fences shall be painted in a
distinctive colour, different from the rest of the fence and shall be marked
"EMERGENCY EXIT". Advertising boards shall not impede any exit in an
emergency.

D.1.8 Each gate shall be permanently marked with its number as set out in Appendix 5.
The numbers shall be not less than 300mm in height and visible when the gates
are either open or closed.

D.1.9 Each staircase and each corridor of the main stand as indicated on plan CH1 shall
be maintained as a sterile area free from any combustible material enclosed with
fire-resisting construction.

D.1.10 Each gangway, exit route, stairway, ramp, stepping and means of access for
emergency vehicles shall be kept free of stored goods, litter, ice and snow whilst
the sports ground is in use for any specified activity. The treads of steps and
stairways shall be maintained with non-slip and even surfaces, and shall be
adequately drained.

D.1.11  Gangways on terraces shall be in a conspicuous colour with a non-slip surface.

Conspicuous nosings shall be provided to stepped gangways in seated areas. All
gangways shall be kept clear of spectators.

Page:30



D.1.12

D.1.13

D.2

D.2.1

D.2.2

D.2.3

D.24

D.25

D.2.6

APPENDIX A

Means of access for Emergency Service vehicles shall be provided as indicated
on the attached drawing No. SC02

The means of access for Emergency Service vehicles shall be maintained
unobstructed and in good condition to the satisfaction of the Council.

Electrical, Mechanical and Heating Installations

The electrical installation for the premises shall be maintained in accordance with
BS 7671 Requirements for Electrical Installation (IEC Wiring Regulations).

A schematic diagram of the main electrical distribution arrangements protected
from defacement or damage, shall be fixed in a position easily accessible to the
technical staff. All switch and control gear shall be clearly labelled to indicate the
circuits which they control.

All cables and conductors of wiring systems shall be sited so that they are, as far
as practicable, inaccessible to the public and shall be enclosed throughout in a
protective covering of material which has sufficient strength to resist mechanical
damage — for example screwed metal conduit, metal trunking, mineral insulated
metal sheathed cables or armoured cables.

Note: Where wiring is to be installed within confined areas (such as in escape
routes), cables from the above list with a PVC sheath shall not be used. Low
Smoke and Fume Emission (LSF) sheathed cables may be acceptable subject to
the Council's approval in writing.

The maintained normal lighting shall be kept illuminated within the sports ground
where there is inadequate natural daylight during specified activities, to allow free
movement within the sports ground and exits therefrom.

Any approved non-maintained escape lighting shall automatically provide
illumination in the event of a failure of the maintained normal lighting supply.

Any approved maintained escape lighting shall be kept illuminated during
specified activities where there is inadequate natural daylight.

Either system of escape lighting independently shall provide a level of illumination
which is adequate to allow free movement within the sports ground and exits
therefrom.

The maintained normal lighting and the emergency lighting shall separately
provide a level of illumination which is sufficient to allow the CCTV system to
function satisfactorily.

The escape lighting shall provide a level of illumination which is adequate to allow
the CCTV cameras to operate satisfactorily.

An alternative electricity supply which functions for a minimum of three hours in
the event of failure of the normal supply shall be provided to the following
installations:

a) Emergency lighting

b) Escape lighting

Rage 31



D.2.7

D.2.8

D.2.9

D.2.10

D.2.11

D.2.12

D.3

D.3.1

D.3.2

APPENDIX A

c) Emergency telephone

d) Fire alarm

e) CCTV control and remote camera system
f)  Control Room(s)

g) Evacuation lift(s)

h) First Aid Room and

i)  Other apparatus/areas where required

Note: Where a generator is used to provide the alternative supply, the start-up
time of the generator should not exceed five seconds.

The electricity power supply to the turnstile monitoring system shall ensure
continuous operation for a period of three hours in the event of a normal supply
failure and ensure that there will be no loss of information on memory.

The electricity power supply to the public address system shall be such as to
ensure continuous operation in the event of failure of the mains electricity supply.
No spectator shall be admitted unless the public address system is in full working
order.

In those areas where mechanical ventilation is provided, it shall be kept running
during the whole time that the areas are occupied.

Approved disposable air filters shall only be replaced by a similar approved type of
filter. Unapproved filters of a different specification shall not be installed without
written consent of the Council.

The heating installation (including all boilers, calorifiers and safety devices) for the
premises, shall be maintained by the Holder in a safe and satisfactory condition;
shall be housed in a fire-resistant enclosure; shall be fitted with automatic energy
cut off device(s); shall have an adequate air supply and shall not prejudice the
means of escape for spectators. The installation shall also be examined as
required by Section F.6.1. Any gas installations shall be provided and maintained
in accordance with the Gas Safety (installations and Use) Regulations 2018.

The Holder shall ensure that electrical installation is in the charge of a person who
is thoroughly familiar with the electrical and mechanical installations in the sports
ground, during the whole of the time the sports ground is in use for a specified
activity.

General

No temporary sales kiosk or stall or other temporary structure (including any
mobile stall) shall be installed without the prior consent of the Council in writing.
Liguefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) shall not be used unless consent is obtained from
the Council in writing.

Hazardous materials (including fuels, fertilizers, weedkillers and paints) and
combustible materials, shall only be stored in a suitable room or storage area

Page:d2



D.3.3

D.3.4

D.3.5

D.3.6

D.3.7

D.3.8

D.3.9

D.3.10

APPENDIX A

approved by the Council. The hazards arising from the keeping of petroleum spirit
or petroleum mixture on the premises, including petroleum spirit kept in fuel tanks
of plant such as motor mowers is subject to additional statutory control. The
Petroleum Enforcement Authority shall be informed of any proposal to keep
petroleum at the premises.

All glass in doors, windows, partitions, etc. in each part of the sports ground
accessible to spectators shall be maintained in a sound condition and any
replacement glass shall conform with the requirements for safety glass as outlined
on Approved Document K, 2013 edition as amended, a schedule to the Building
Regulations 2010.

Suitable and sufficient cutting equipment, approved by the Council, shall be
provided by the Holder to permit the immediate removal of any pitch perimeter
fencing to release spectators. The Holder shall provide properly trained staff at
each specified activity to use the equipment.

No marquees, tents, soft furnishings, artificial foliage or decoration, shall be
installed unless suitable test evidence of material samples have been submitted to
the Council and the Council's written consent has been obtained.

The following areas shall be kept completely free of storage, goods, litter
combustible or flammable material or other obstruction and access maintained at
all times:

a)  All boiler rooms

b)  Plant rooms

C) Electrical intake rooms

d)  Electrical switch rooms

e) Transformer rooms

f) Lift motor rooms and lobbies

g) Generator rooms and

h)  Voids, particularly beneath wooden stands.

Except as provided in paragraph D.3.8 or with consent of the Council in writing, no
cylinder for the storage of compressed air, oxygen, hydrogen or other gas or liquid
under pressure shall be used or stored in the sports ground.

Cylinders for the storage of CO? may be used for the supply of beer pumps
provided that only one cylinder in use, chained in an upright position, plus one
spare for each bar, may be kept in such bar or bar store. Any other CO? cylinder

shall be kept in a store approved by the Council.

No special effects, displays or other arrangements (including pyrotechnics, lasers
etc.) shall be undertaken without the prior consent of the Council in writing.

The Holder shall ensure that all seating is maintained securely fixed in position,
suitably numbered and that damaged seats are promptly repaired or replaced.

Rage. 33



D.3.11

D.3.12

APPENDIX A

All fire doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and shall not be secured
open unless otherwise permitted by the Council. Doors to stores and plant rooms

shall be kept locked whilst spectators are on the premises during a specified
activity.

Any temporary demountable structures used in the sports ground shall be erected
and used in strict accordance with their design criteria approved by the Council
prior to assembly. The design of any temporary demountable structure shall be
subject to an independent check by a competent person as defined in Section
F.1.4 and a certificate submitted to the Council as set out in Section G.2.1 (n).

Page:s34



E.l

E.1l1l

E.1.2

E.1.3

E.2

E.2.1

E.2.2

E.2.3

E.24

E.3

E3.1

APPENDIX A

SCHEDULEE
FIRE AND FIRE FIGHTING

General

All emergencies are to be directed in the first instance to the Safety Officer's
Control Point

The Fire and Rescue Service shall be called to any outbreak of fire or suspicion
of fire, in accordance with the procedure detailed in Appendix 8.

The Petroleum Enforcement Authority shall be informed of any proposal to keep
petroleum and other hazardous substances at the premises.

Fire Warning System

The fire warning system shall consist of emergency telephones positioned
throughout the sports ground as specified in Appendix 6 together with manually
operated electric fire-alarms, automatic fire detectors and the public address
system.

a) The emergency telephones shall be directed to the Safety Officer's Control
Point during specified activities.

b) The public address system shall be controlled from the Safety Officer's
Control Point

c) The public address system shall be provided with emergency override
facilities.

d) The fire alarms and smoke detectors shall terminate at the control panel in
the Race day office.

The telephone switchboard and fire alarm control panel shall be permanently
staffed during a specified activity.

The public address system shall be staffed during a specified activity by a person
nominated by the club who shall be responsible, in conjunction with the Holder,
for carrying out emergency evacuation procedures for the sportsground.

The fire warning systems (emergency telephones, automatic fire detection
systems and public address system), as determined by the Council in
consultation with the Fire and Rescue Service, shall be maintained in an
effective working order. Any defects noted in the testing of the systems shall be
recorded (see Schedule F) and remedied without delay prior to the next specified
activity. If this is not possible, the matter shall be reported immediately to the
Council and the Fire and Rescue Service.

Fire Fighting Equipment

Portable fire appliances, hose reels and fire fighting equipment with adequate

Rage. 35



E.3.2

E.3.3

E.3.4

E.3.7

E.3.8

E.4

E4.1

APPENDIX A

water supplies shall be provided in the positions specified in Appendix 3,
inspected and tested as specified in Schedule F, and records kept as specified in
Schedule G.

Extinguishers shall comply with BS EN3 and are to have British Approvals for
Fire Equipment (BAFE) Certification under the British Standards Institute's
'Kitemark' Scheme. Extinguishers shall be installed and maintained in
accordance with BS.5306: Part 3 and to the editions current at the date of this
Certificate. New extinguishers shall be of a pattern similar to the existing
extinguishers.

Extinguishers shall be located in conspicuous positions on brackets or stands
where they are readily seen by persons following an escape route. The carrying
handles of larger heavier extinguishers shall be about 1m from the floor but small
fire extinguishers and fire blankets shall be mounted so as to position the handle
of the extinguisher/base of the fire blanket about 1.5m from the floor.

Fire Extinguishers shall be sited so as to be easily accessible to staff but not, so
as to cause obstruction or be easily vandalised. They shall be protected against
extremes of temperature and, where necessary, shall contain an anti-freeze
agent recommended by the manufacturer.
IMPORTANT
BEFORE RUNNING OUT TUBING
TURN ON VALVE ABOVE/BELOW REEL
The main stop valve controlling the water supply to the hose reels shall be
secured fully open by a suitable device (e.g. in the case of a wheel operated
valve, by a padlocked chain or strap). The valve shall be indicated by a
permanent notice reading "FIRE SUPPLY - DO NOT TURN OFF".
If hose reels are to be enclosed in a cupboard, the doors shall be designed to
open through 180° to prevent obstruction when tubing is run out in any direction
and shall be free from any key operated fastenings. Unless the enclosure doors
are predominantly glazed with clear glass, the face of the doors shall be marked
"FIRE HOSE REEL" in conspicuous lettering.
Fire Duties
Each member of staff and each Steward shall be fully trained by the Holder in
the procedure to be adopted in the event of fire or other emergencies as
appropriate to the duties they perform. Such duties shall include:-
a) the action to be taken on discovery of a fire or other emergency
b) the method of calling the Fire and Rescue Service

c) the method of operating the fire alarms and procedures to be followed
thereafter

d) operation of the internal emergency telephones

e) familiarisation with positions of emergency telephones and fire alarm call

Page:36



E.4.2

E.5

E5.1

E.5.2

APPENDIX A

points throughout the sports ground

f) the correct method of using fire fighting equipment and familiarisation with
their locations within the sports ground

g) evacuation of the sports ground, the location of assembly points, and
specific action required by individual members of staff

h) familiarisation with all escape routes and the methods of maintaining such
escape routes free of obstruction

a. the purpose of fire-resisting doors and the need to maintain them in the
closed position

i) the importance of fire evacuation training and
j) the importance of reporting defects which are identified.

Details of all training and briefing for staff and Stewards shall be entered in a log
book.

Instruction Notices
Copies of Emergency Instructions, as specified in Appendix 8, shall each be
displayed in clearly legible characters in the locations listed and as determined

by the Council, but such so as not to be visible to spectators.

Each such notice shall be framed and glazed or otherwise protected against loss
or defacement, and shall be positioned so that it is not readily visible to the
general public.

Rage. 37



APPENDIX A

SCHEDULE F

BRIEFING, TESTING AND INSPECTION BY THE HOLDER

F.1

F.1.1

F.1.2

F.1.3

F.1.4

F.2

Introduction

The following training sessions, tests and inspections shall be carried out by the

Holder and records kept as specified. Any defect found as a result of those tests
and inspections or otherwise shall be recorded which shall also record when the

defect is discovered and when remedied.

All defects and deficiencies shall be reported to the Safety Officer as soon as is
reasonably possible.

In this schedule, a ‘competent person' in relation to the testing and certification of
electrical systems and installations shall be one of the following:

° a corporate member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers

° a contractor currently enrolled with the National Inspection Council for
Electrical Installation Contracting or Electrical Contractors' Association;

o a suitably qualified representative of the Electrical Supply Authority.
In this schedule, a competent person in relation to the testing and certification of

structural elements shall be one of the following, with the appropriate skills and
experience in the Guide to Safety at Sports Ground:

. a Chartered Structural Engineer
° a Chartered Surveyor (Building Surveying Division)
° a Chartered Civil Engineer
° or another similarly qualified person.
Every Activity

F.2.1 Before the start of each specified activity, the Holder shall:

a) inspect the general condition and state of maintenance of the sports
ground, paying particular attention to the condition of each terrace,
stairway, exit route, access route and directional sign;

b) inspect all gangways, entry, exit and access routes to ensure freedom
from obstructions and trip hazards; that surfaces are not slippery and to
ensure that they are capable of being used to their full capacity;

c) examine each crush barrier and balustrade for corrosion, deformation or
any other visible weakness; ensure all structures are free from damage,

Page:38



F.2.2

d)

f)

9)

h)

)
K)

APPENDIX A

corrosion or deformation which might cause a potential danger to the
public; test exit doors and gates to ensure that they are easily and fully
openable whether manually or electronically operated;

remove and dispose of all potential missiles, rubbish and combustible
waste and clear each exit, stairway, exit route, boiler room, electrical
intake room, void, lift lobby and all areas to which the public have access,
including the means of access for emergency vehicles; of goods, litter,
combustible or flammable materials, unauthorised products or other
obstruction or hazard;

examine all exit doors and gates (including those in perimeter or radial
fences) whether manually or electronically operated and ensure that the
equipment for cutting perimeter fences in an emergency (if appropriate), is
in place;

inspect all voids beneath wooden stands, all kitchens and food
preparation areas and all other areas particularly vulnerable to fire for
combustible materials or other hazards, and ensure that hazardous
materials are removed, or safely stored, well away from public areas;

ensure that the required fire fighting equipment is in position and
available;

inspect first aid rooms and the equipment and supplies held there and
ensure that sufficient first aid personnel are present and at their posts and
have been properly briefed;

where this is in use, that television and outside broadcast equipment,
including cables, are located in the approved position;

ensure containers used to store combustible waste or litter are secure;

ensure that areas to which public access is prohibited are properly locked
or sealed off;

ensure that directional signs are in place and, where appropriate,
illuminated;

ensure the integrity of any demountable structures after their assembly;
and

ensure that media activities do not interfere with, or negate, the normal
safety operation of the sports ground, and do not hamper the safety,
comfort or viewing standards of spectators.

In each case, if problems are identified, the Holder shall take appropriate
remedial action before the public is allowed access to the affected area. The
results of the inspections and checks shall be recorded in a log book.

All generators and associated engines, where in use, shall be tested in
accordance with the manufacturer's instructions by a competent person (including
an electrician on the ground staff) not more than 48 hours prior to a specified
activity. It should include a simulated mains failure test with the generator taking
up its prescribed load within five seconds. The results of such tests shall be

Rage. 39



F.2.3

F.2.4

F.2.5

F.2.6

F.2.7

F.2.8

F.2.9

F.2.10

APPENDIX A

recorded in a log book.

The automatic fire detection and fire warning systems (including the repeater
panel in the Control Room), shall be tested in accordance with the method laid
down in BS5839 : Part 1 (paragraph 29.2.4); the stewards radio systems,
emergency telephones, public address system and back-up loud hailers, CCTV
system, video or electronic information boards, emergency lighting systems and
temporary television camera platforms and gantries and other media installation,
shall all be tested (including a test from the secondary power supply) and
inspected at least 24 hours and not more than 48 hours prior to a specified
activity and the result recorded in the log book.

The turnstiles and metering or entry monitoring systems (including electronic
monitoring systems), as set out in Section B.4.12, shall be tested before each
specified activity and the results recorded in a log book.

Stewards shall be briefed on their general and emergency duties in accordance
with Sections B.2.5, B.2.7, B.3.1 and E.4.1 and a record of the briefing made.

The Holder shall liaise with the Police and the Fire and Rescue Service in
accordance with Section B.4.1.

The Holder shall liaise with the Chief Ambulance Officer regarding appropriate
ambulance provision under Section C.2.4.

The Holder shall ensure that First Aid equipment and materials are maintained at
the required level, as set out in Section C.1.2 and Appendix 2

During each specified activity, the Holder shall:

a) ensure that litter and waste are not allowed to accumulate, and are
removed to secure containers whenever possible;

b) ensure that materials are not allowed to accumulate or be stored in
circulation, exit or escape routes; and

c) ensure that all aisles, exits, emergency exits and escape routes are kept
clear.

After each specified activity, the Holder shall:

a) carry out a general visual inspection of the sports ground for signs of
damage or deformation which might create a potential danger to the
public, with particular attention to the condition of seats, terraces, viewing
slopes, barriers and stairways;

b) ensure that combustible waste and litter are cleared (particularly from
voids) and either removed or stored in secure containers;

c) participate with the ambulance officers and first aiders in a de-briefing and
record any comments and follow up action;

d) ensure that any outstanding matters of concern are recorded and

arrangements made for remedial action before the next specified activity;
and

Page40



F.3

F.3.1

F.3.2

F.3.3

F.4

F.4.1

F.5

F.5.1

F.5.2

F.6

F.6.1

F.6.2

F.6.3

F.6.4

APPENDIX A

e) liaise with the Police Service and/or crowd control personnel to gain full
benefit from any de-briefing about crowd control.

Every Month
All hose reels shall be tested once a month and the results entered in a log book.

Monthly inspections of extinguishers, spare gas cartridges and replacement
charges shall be carried out to ensure that extinguishers are in their correct
positions and have not been discharged or suffered a pressure loss or damage.
The results of the inspections shall be entered in a log book.

Each generator and associated engine used to provide alternative supplies shall
be tested by a competent person. The generator shall be started under
simulated mains failure and tested on full load for not less than one hour. The
results of the tests shall be recorded in a log book.

Every Three Months

Any passenger lift installation shall be maintained and inspected at least once
every three months by a competent lift engineer, and a certificate from the lift
insurance company to the effect that the whole installation is in safe and efficient
working order, shall be submitted to the Council at least once every 12 months.

Every Six Months

An inspection and three hour full load test of the escape lighting batteries shall
be carried out by a competent person. A certificate with the test results shall be
submitted to the Council.

Where self-contained battery operated escape luminaries are installed, the
certificate shall confirm that each luminaire has been energised from its battery
for three hours.

An inspection of any electronic locking system, shall be carried out by a
recognised person.

Every Year

An examination of the boiler, calorifier, and all safety devices shall be carried out
by a boiler insurance company and a certificate confirming that they are in a safe
condition shall be submitted to the Council at least once every 12 months.

The escape lighting engine, generator and control gear shall be tested by a
competent person, and a certificate to the effect that they are in efficient working
order shall be submitted to the Council at least once in every 12 months.

The manual electric fire alarm, automatic fire detection equipment, emergency
telephone system, CCTV and public address system shall be tested by a
competent person and a certificate confirming that they are in a satisfactory
condition shall be submitted to the Council at least once in every 12 months.

All fire fighting equipment shall be maintained and overhauled in accordance with

BS 9999 BS.EN 671, BS.5306: Parts 1 and 3,and BS.EN 1869 BS EN 7944 as
appropriate by a recognised person or company of fire engineers and a record

Rage 41



F.6.5

F.6.6

F.6.7

F.6.8

F.6.9

F.6.10

APPENDIX A

kept. Aninspection and maintenance certificate in respect of all fire fighting
equipment at the sports ground shall be submitted to the Council once in every
12 months.

NOTE: The British Approvals for Fire Equipment operates a scheme of
registration of companies to carry out maintenance of fire
extinguishers under contract. The scheme is run by the British
Standards Institution (BSI Quality Assurance) through its "Registered
Firms" Scheme.

Two evacuation training sessions shall be carried out every 12 months in
accordance with Clause 7 and the details recorded in a log book.

Inspections shall be made of the sports ground, including crush barriers,
boundary walls, fences, gates and including all buildings, structures, components
and installations, by a competent person as set out in Section F.6.7, or other
similarly qualified professional, to ascertain their strength, stability and state of
maintenance. A certificate of inspection shall be submitted to the Council at
intervals not exceeding 12 months.

All barriers (including crush barriers, handrails and other structural crowd control
elements) shall be subject to an annual written risk assessment, a copy of which,
shall be forwarded to the Council. Every barrier identified by the risk assessment
as a potential risk shall be tested immediately as set out in Appendix 7. A
certificate of testing shall be submitted to the Council.

The certificate shall list and identify the items to which it refers and confirm that
they are in such condition as to perform safely their required functions from the
date of the certificate. The risk assessment and testing shall be carried out, and
the certificate signed, by one of the following with appropriate skills and
experience:

. a Chartered Structural Engineer;
° a Chartered Surveyor (Building Surveying Division); or
° a Chartered Civil Engineer.

The electrical installations, not covered by Section F.7.1, shall be inspected and
tested and a periodic inspection report, in the form prescribed in Guidance to the
IEC Wiring Regulations, shall be submitted to the Council at least once in every
12 months unless the previous certificate specified a shorter period, and not later
than 3 months before the expiry date of the current certificate. The certificate
shall confirm that the installation is in a safe working condition and shall be
signed by a competent person.

The lightning protection system shall be tested by a competent person and a
certificate confirming that it is in a satisfactory condition shall be submitted to the
Council at least once in every 12 months.

Where crush barriers and handrails fail to meet these test conditions they shall

be replaced or strengthened. Such barriers and handrails shall be retested in
accordance with Appendix 7.

Page-42



F.7

F.7.1

APPENDIX A

Every Five Years

New electrical installations shall be inspected and tested and a periodic
inspection report, in the form prescribed in Guidance Note 3 to the IEC Wiring
Regulations, shall be submitted to the Council at least once in every five years
unless the previous certificate specified a shorter period, and not later than three
months before the expiry date of the current certificate. The certificate shall
confirm that the installation is in a safe working condition and shall be signed by
a competent person.

Rage 43



G.1

G.1.1

APPENDIX A

SCHEDULE G

RECORDS AND CERTIFICATES

Records to be Kept by the Holder

The Holder shall keep, separately, for a minimum period of six years, the
following records which shall be made available for inspection by the Council's
authorised officers or representatives of the SGSA at all reasonable times. (The
Holder shall be responsible for the collation of the information required for the
records from the relevant organisation.) Each record shall specify the name,
status and qualifications of any person carrying out a test, inspection or remedial
work:

a) arecord of the number of spectators admitted to the sports ground for a
specified activity, and to each part of the sports ground referred to in
Appendix 4;

b) arecord of any accident or incident which causes injury, other than a
playing injury, which is brought to the notice of the Holder and which
occurs whilst the sports ground is in use for a specified activity;

c) arecord of the names of stewards on duty at each event and the positions
allocated to them within the sports ground as specified in Sections B.2.1,
B.2.6, B.2.9 and B.2.10;

d) arecord of details, including attendance, of each training session and
pre-event briefing given to staff and Stewards as specified in Section B.2.7
and Section E.4;

e) arecord of the numbers and posts of all first aiders present on each
occasion as specified in Section C.2.1 and the attendance of the crowd
doctor as specified in Section C.2.2 and C.2.3;

f)  arecord of each exercise as specified in Clause 7,

g) arecord of tests of emergency telephones, fire alarms and automatic fire
detectors and public address system as specified in Sections F.2.3, F.3.1,
F.6.3 and Section E.2.4;

h) arecord of tests of fire fighting equipment as specified in Sections E.3.1,
F.3.1and F.6.4;

i)  arecord of tests of the escape lighting, generator and engine as specified
in Section F.2.2 and F.3.3;

j)  arecord of tests of the turnstiles and electronic monitoring system as
specified in Section F.2.4;

k) arecord of each inspection carried out at the sports ground to ensure

Page-44



G.12

G.2

G.z21

APPENDIX A

compliance with Section F.2.1;

a record in a Defects Log Book of any defect relating to the safety of the
sports ground, howsoever discovered, including a record of when such
defect has been remedied,;

a record of the certificates required to be submitted to the Council under
Section G.2.1. below.

a record of all first aid or medical treatment provided during or in
connection with any specified activity;

a record of all fire alarms soundings whether or not activated by the
automatic fire detector system;

a record of all substantial maintenance work and improvements relating to
safety carried out at the sports ground;

a record of all pre-event inspections as specified in Section F.2.3;
a record of any non-routine opening of an exit door or gate; and

a record of any assumption of control by the Police.

The Holder shall ensure that all records are kept fully up to date in a tamper
proof form. The records shall be kept together and available to the Safety Officer
along with a copy of this certificate and its related documentation.

Certificates to be Submitted by the Holder to the Council

The Holder shall submit the following certificates to the Council:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

an escape-lighting battery test report as specified in Section F.5.1, once
in every 6 months;

a certificate of examination of boiler calorifiers etc., as specified in
Section F.6.1, once in every 12 months;

a certificate of inspection of escape lighting generator and engine as
specified in Section F.6.2, once in every 12 months;

a certificate of structural safety as specified in Section F.6.6, once in
every 12 months;

a certificate of satisfactory load testing as specified in Section F.6.7, once
in every 12 months;

a certificate of inspection of the manual electric fire alarms and automatic
fire detection equipment as specified in Section F.6.3, once in every 12
months;

a certificate of inspection of lifts as specified in Section F.4.1 once in
every 12 months;

a certificate of inspection for the public address installation once in every
12 months;

Rage 45



APPENDIX A

a certificate of inspection of the emergency telephone system once in
every 12 months;

a certificate of inspection of all fire fighting equipment as specified in
Section F.6.4 at least once in every 12 months; and

a certificate of inspection of the electrical installation as specified in
Section F.6.8 or F.7.1, at least once in every 12 months or five years as
appropriate.

a certificate of inspection of the CCTV system as specified in Section
F.6.3 at least once every 12 months.

a certificate of inspection of the lightning conductor as specified in
Section F.6.9 at least once every 12 months; and

an independent design certificate for any temporary demountable
structure prior to assembly at the sports ground.

Page-46



/v obed

INDEX OF KEY LOCATIONS

Key locations as specified on Plan No. Drawing SCO1.

Description

Location

Medical Room

Location -A

Club Shop

Location B

Patrion’s Lounge

Location C (Underneath main stand)

Turnbull Bar Location D ( in clubhouse)
Food outlet 1Tow bar Express stand Location E
Matchday office Location F
Changing Rooms Location G
Food Outlet 2 — (South Terrace Upgang Location H

Lane

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 1



gy abed

FIRST AID EQUIPMENT

As set out in medical plan for Whitby Town FC 2023-2024, version 1.6, season 23-24

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 2



61 abed

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 3

SCHEDULE OF FIRE APPLIANCES

Date next due
Extinguishes Other Fire Appliances Appliance Check

Location

6 Litre . .

water 6 Litre Co? Dry 45m Hose | 30m Hose Fire Powder

foam 2.2kg Powder 6kg Reel Reel Blanket

type* 2kg
Changing room X1 June -2024
Passage
Matchday Office X1 X1 June -2024
Passage / Waiting
Area
Matchday Office X1 X1 June -2024
Kitchen
Matchday X1 X1 June -2024
Office
Canteen Tow Bar X1 X1 June -2024
Express stand
Managers X1 June -2024
/Treasurers Office

OFFICIAL




0G abed

APPENDIX B

Bar / Bar Entrance/ | X1 X2 June -2024
Bar Cellar

Club Shop X1 June -2024
Hospitality Lounge X1 June -2024
Sponsors Lounge X1 June -2024
Hospitality Kitchen X1 X1 X1 June -2024
Medical Room X1 X1 June -2024
Groundsman Garage X1 June -2024
Canteen Cabin X1 X1 June -2024

OFFICIAL




APPENDIX B

PERMITTED NUMBERS OF SPECTATORS APPENDIX 4
ZONES CALCULATION CAPACITY (P) FACTOR (S) FACTOR ADJUSTED ADJUSTED
CALCULATION CAPACITY
(A) (B) (C) (D)
Zone 1 500 Seats + 512 1.0 1.0 None 512
X 6 Disabled & X6 Helpers
Zone 2
-0 Sponsors 18m x 1.5 x 47/10 126.9 0.6 0.6 BxC 76
ég lounge
(¢
o1 And
F* Standing 5.7m x1.5x 47/10m 40.18 0.6 0.6 BXC 24
area
Zone 3 68 x 1.5x47/10 479.4 0.7 0.7 BxC 332
Zone 4 (A) 9.8x1.5x47/10 = 69 0.6 0.6 BxC 41
Zone 4 (B) 50x 1.5x47/10 = 3525 0.6 0.6 BxC 212

OFFICIAL



APPENDIX B

Z2c 2By 1

Zone 4 (C) 19m x 1.5m x47/10 134 0.6 0.6 BxC 80
And 2.8m x1.5x 47/10 19.74 0.6 0.6 BxC 12
Zone 5 27.3m x 1.5m x 47/10 192.46 0.7 0.7 BxC 135
Zone 6 35m x 1.5m x 47/10 246.75 0.7 0.7 BxC 173
Zone 7 21m x 1.5 persons deep 148.05 0.6 0.6 BxC 89
9m x 1.5m x 47/10 63.45 0.6 0.6 BxC
,D 7.6mx 1.5m x 47/10 53.58 0.6 0.6 BxC 38
D
p 32
)
TOTALS 2437.96 Ground Capacity
Without 1756
adjustment
using Por S
factor

Maximum number of spectators that may be admitted to each part of the sports ground at any one time shall be restricted to the capacities set out above.

The maximum ground capacity total shall not exceed 1756 persons.

OFFICIAL



€g abed

North
Terrace
stand

- Scratching Shed (East stand)

Key
gmm} [ntrance/Exit

First Aid Room

’ Food,/Bar area

Zone 1D I Zone 1C I Zone 1B I Zone 1A

Zone 7

#*—— Towbar Express stand (Main/West stand) ———»

OFFICIAL

High Risk Zones: 5 &
¢ 1
A
Away Supporters
] zone 5 & G area
for Segregation
B games
South
$@====) Terrace
stand
L J

Medium Risk Zones:1A, 1B, 1C, 1D, 7

APPENDIX B



APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 5

EXIT GATES, DOOR NUMBERS AND WIDTH OF EXITS

G abed

Location plan ref SC02 Gate Clear opening width (m)
numbers

Emergency Gate A Emergency i 3.

Rear of main stand Gate

Emergency Gate B Emergency 3.28m

South Stand — Upgang Lane Gate -2 '

Turnstile 1 and 2 Turnstile 1 1.04m
and 2

Turnstile 3 Turnstile 3 1.07m

Turnstile 4 Turnstile 4 3.28m
Upgang Lane

OFFICIAL



APPENDIX B
New Sponsors Lounge

North Terrace Stand

‘ First Aid Room Emergency
Access to Pitch
’ Emergency
Exit

Emergency Gate A

Access to First Aid
Room

Turnstiles 1 & 2 Entrance &
Exit

1- Pre paid tickets only
2- Pay on the door

Scratching Shed

GG abed

(EAST STAND)

Whitby Town (@ ’ Turnstile 4 Entrance Exit gate -B

i Foorama!
Turnstile 3 Entrance & Foot ub

Exit - (up gang lane)Entrance and Riftswood (=
Drop off point (AWAY Fans)

r

o

g S

South Terrance N ooq;a
Segregation Gate

B

Rosewood B&l

Goog'le"s’

Lo
A P 3 Imagery ©2022 CNES / Airbus, Infoterra Ltd & Bluesky, Maxar Technologies, Mg

L/
OFFICIAL




9G abed

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 6

LOCATION OF EMERGENCY AND CONFERENCE TELEPHONES

SCHEDULE OF TELEPHONES

Type

Position

Number

Landline

Matchday office Drawing
SCO1

01947 604847

Safety Officer mobile
numbers Graham Reeves
and Cindy Ripley

Control point

07429 475308 (GR)
07927290640(CR)

Mobile Graeme Hinchliffe

MD

07973 339962

Scott Booth

07775 724049

*staff will all have their own personal mobile phones and will be able to use if required

NOTES:

1.

2.

Emergency telephone lines shall comply with BS.5839: Part 1 Section 17.2.

and wired to comply with BS.5839: Part 1 Section 17.2.

OFFICIAL

Direct lines shall be on a system independent of the general and emergency telephone system with an independent power supply



)G abed

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 7

TEST LOADS AND STRUCTURAL TESTING PROCEDURES FOR BARRIERS ETC.

TEST LOADS AND TESTING

Horizontal
Imposed Load
(kKN/m)
A. Handrails, Balustrading, Fences, Guard Rails

Barriers for spectator galleries :

3.4m distance 3.0

2.3m distance 2.0

1.7m distance 15
Barriers for gangways of seating decks, aligned at right angles to the 3.0
direction of spectator movement: '
Barriers for gangway of seating decks, parallel to the direction of 20
spectator movement: '
Barriers for seating decks, adjacent to the end row of seats and 1.0

protecting spectators from falling sideways:

OFFICIAL



gG abed

Barriers for seating decks, behind a rear row of seats and protecting

spectators from falling backwards: 1.0
Barriers positioned within 530mm in front of seats : 15
Barriers for stairways, landings and ramps, aligned at right angles to 3.0
the direction of movement of spectators: '
Barriers for stairways, landings and ramps, aligned with the direction of 20
movement of spectators: '
Barriers for gangways in standing areas, aligned at right angles to the 50
direction of spectator movement: '
B. Crush Barriers for Standing Accommodation

Spaced between 5.0m and 3.1m for terrace gradient range 5 degree to 5.0
25 degree:

Spaced between 4.0m and 2.5m for terrace gradient range 5 degree to 4.0
25 degree:

Spaced between 3.3m and 2.1m for terrace gradient range 5 degree to 34
25 degree: '
Spaced between 3.0m and 1.8m for terrace gradient range 5 degree to 3.0
25 degree:

Spaced between 2.0m and 1.2m for terrace gradient range 5 degree to 2.0
25 degree:

C. Pitch Perimeter Fence
Perimeter Wall around playing surface TBC

D. Other Elements

Loads to be determined by the Council where allowance will be made
for forces simultaneously and independently induced by other factors;
for example wind forces or attached installations.

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B



6G abed

APPENDIX B

Notes
Barrier Test Method

The test method for barriers shall be in two parts: the bedding-in cycle and the proof cycle. Barriers that do not fulfil the requirements of
both parts shall be deemed to have failed the test.

The deflection measuring equipment shall be unaffected by any movement of the barriers, their supports, or the movements of
personnel performing the test.

The deflections in the horizontal plane shall be measured at relevant locations; for example, at the centre of a barrier rail or the top of an
upright.

The loading procedure adopted shall result in each component or part of any barrier being subject to levels of stress at least equal to
the stresses that would occur were the structure subjected to the relevant uniformly distributed load at a design level of 1.1m.

Bedding-in Cycle

In order to allow for bedding-in, the barrier shall be loaded up to its horizontal imposed load as defined in the table above. The bedding-
in load shall be applied in at least five equal increments and then removed. Deflections shall be monitored at each increment of the
load cycle and upon removal of the load. The barrier may be considered to have satisfactorily completed this part of the test if, on
removal of the load, the recovery is at least 75 per cent of the maximum deflection, as measured from the original position prior to
loading, or if the permanent deflection is less than 2mm.

If the barrier fails to achieve this level of recovery it shall be considered to have failed the test unless there is a satisfactory explanation
for the results.

Proof Cycle

The proof cycle shall consist of two consecutive applications of the proof load. The interval between each application shall be such as
to enable complete unloading.

For crush barriers, the proof load is equal to 1.2 x the horizontal imposed load specified in item B of this Appendix.

OFFICIAL



09 abed

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

APPENDIX B

For other barriers, the proof force is equal to 1.2 x the horizontal imposed load specified in item A of this Appendix.

The application of the proof load shall consist of five equal increments. The full proof load shall be maintained for five minutes and then
removed. A record shall be kept of the deflection at each load increment, the deflection after the five-minute application of the full proof
load, and the residual deflection after removal of the load. The procedure is then repeated.

If on the removal of the load after the second application, the recovery is at least 95 per cent in any measured deflection (as measured
from the barrier position at the start of the proof test cycle - that is, after the bedding-in cycle), the barrier shall be considered to have
satisfied the proof cycle loading requirement.

Further Considerations

Comparisons shall be made with the records available from previous testing of the barrier.

Comparisons shall also be made with the performance of other barriers of a similar type subjected to the same or similar tests. This is
to establish whether there are indications of a reduction in overall performance, perhaps indicative of a developing weakness that
necessitates either remedial action or more regular testing or inspection.

If the barrier satisfies the requirements of the testing procedure, but during that procedure doubt arises as to its safety, for any reason
(including such matters as corrosion, distortion of connections and fittings, or cracking in the vicinity of the supports), a further detailed

investigation shall be carried out. Unless the results of this detailed investigation remove the doubt, the barrier shall be deemed to have
failed.

A barrier failing the test procedure shall be removed and replaced, or strengthened and then retested.

OFFICIAL



T9 abed

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 8

STAFF INSTRUCTION NOTICES AND EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

NOTICE 1

IF YOU DISCOVER OR ARE INFORMED OF A FIRE

1.

or

2.

Contact safety officer via radio
operate the nearest fire alarm call point.

Attack the fire if possible with the appliances
provided.

NEVER use the word FIRE within the
hearing of the public

ALWAYS use the code words IRENE e.g.
‘IRENE’ is in (location of fire)

Do not take personal risks.

IF YOU DISCOVER, OR ARE INFORMED OF A SUS

PICIOUS PACKAGE

1.

2.

Inform the Control Room

Take no further action until told to do so.

NEVER use the words explosive device or
BOMB within the hearing of the public.

ALWAYS use the code words IRENE

IF YOU HEAR ALERT

1.

Stewards proceed to your emergency
position and prepare to evacuate the
ground.

On receipt of an emergency call, the
following ALERT message will be given over
the public address system :

OFFICIAL



29 abed

2.

3.

Stewards ensure doors or gates are open.

Wait for further instructions.

Attention please, attention please. Will the
stadium manager meet IRENE in (location
of fire).

STAND DOWN MESSAGE

Resume normal duties

If it is decided not to evacuate the ground,
the following announcement will be made
over the public address system:

Attention please, ‘IRENE’ has left the
stadium.

IF YOU HEAR AN EVACUATION ANNOUNCEMENT

Open the exit door

Repeat in a firm voice, after the
announcement:

“This way out, please.”

When evacuation is complete, close doors
and report to the Steward Supervisor.

Unless designated for special duties, leave
the building and report to the person in
charge at the Staff Fire Assembly Point
near main Entrance in carpark .

The following announcement will be made
over the public address system:

“Ladies and gentlemen, due to unforeseen
circumstances, it is not possible to continue
with this event. Please leave the ground as
quickly and quietly as possible using the
exits indicated to you by the staff.”

(Message is repeated).
The Control Room will coordinate resources

to ensure that no one is left behind,
including toilet and cloakroom areas.

DO NOT stop to collect personal belongings.

DO NOT re-enter the building.

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B



g abed

APPENDIX B

NOTICE 2
PUBLIC ADDRESS ANNOUNCER

(copy to Control Room)

Back Row Towbar Express Stand

ON BEING INFORMED OF A FIRE OR SUSPECTED EXPLOSIVE DEVICE

1. Announce over the public address NEVER use the words "FIRE" or "BOMB,
system "Will the stadium manager explosive device" within the hearing of the
meet IRENFE’in ..... (location of public.

suspected fire/explosive device)."

2. Relay further messages or instructions.

STAND DOWN MESSAGE

1. If it is decided not to evacuate the
ground, announce over the public
address system "Attention please,
‘IRENE’ has left the stadium."

2. Resume normal duties.
IF YOU ARE INSTRUCTED TO ORDER AN EVACUATION

OFFICIAL



79 abed

Announce over the public address
system "Ladies and gentlemen, due
to unforeseen circumstances, it is
not possible to continue with this
event. Please leave the ground as
quickly and quietly as possible using
the exits indicated to you by the
staff."

REPEAT the message until you are
satisfied that evacuation is
proceeding satisfactorily.

Leave the building.
Report to the person in charge at the

Staff Assembly Point Fire Assembly
Point in main car Park Entrance.

DO NOT stop to collect personal
belongings.

DO NOT re-enter the ground

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B



G9 abed

NOTICE 3

CONTROL ROOM TELEPHONE OPERATOR

Whitby Town

YOU ARE NOTIFIED OF A FIRE

1.

IMMEDIATELY call the FIRE and
Rescue Service

When the Fire and Rescue Service
replies tell them clearly and distinctly:

"There is a fire at TOWBAR STADIUM,
WHITBY TOWN FC."

If possible, tell the Fire and Rescue

6.

Service which Gate Number to report to.

Clear the switchboard of normal traffic.
the location of the fire:

(a) Gate

(b) Gate

Stand by to receive instructions.

() Dial 999.

(i) Give the operator your telephone
number and ask for "FIRE".

DO NOT DISCONNECT until the address has
been repeated by the Fire and Rescue
Service.

STAND DOWN MESSAGE

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B



99 abed

1. Resume normal duties.

If it is decided not to evacuate the ground,
the following announcement will be made
over the public address system:-

"Attention please, IRENE has left the
stadium."

IF YOU HEAR AN EVACUATION ANNOUNCEMENT

1. Contact the Duty Safety Officer for
instructions

IF YOU ARE INSTRUCTED TO LEAVE THE PREMISES

1. Leave by the nearest available exit
and report to the person in charge at
the Staff Assembly Point [INSERT
APPROPRIATE REFERENCE].

DO NOT stop to collect personal belongings.

DO NOT re-enter the building.

SUSPICIOUS PACKAGE

1. Inform the Control Room.

2. Stand by to receive instructions.

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B



/9 abed

LOCATIONS AND NUMBERS OF STEWARDS

Location Number
Entrance to car park (steward) then During

Match goes to (Scratching Shed) East 1

stand

Family Stand (steward) 1
Turnstiles 1 & 2 (SIA) 1
Outside Bar (SIA) 1
Security response team (SIA) Patrol 5

Ground

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 9



89 abed

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 10

PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT WITHIN CONTROL CENTRES

Match Day Control Centre

X7 Motrola Radios Ear peices

CCTV SYSTEM

X3 Number Counters and Searching wands
Laptop and Tablet

Mobile Phones

X6 Crowd Barriers

Loud Hailer

OFFICIAL



69 abed

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 11

SPECIFIED ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES COVERED BY THE CERTIFICATE

The activities covered by this Certificate are as follows:

GROUP A

Football matches

Note: Attention is drawn to the requirements of B.4.1 and B.4.2 of Schedule B relating to Police attendance.

Any pre-match entertainment, including live music and dancing, shall not be commenced until the gates to the sports ground have been opened
for the admittance of the public to the activities listed above and covered by the terms and conditions of the certificate.

OFFICIAL



0/ abed

1.

2.

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 12

SAFETY CONTROL AND POLICE FACILITIES

A Safety Control Point which shall be:

a) well placed and secure, so as to command a good view of the whole of the playing pitch and of the spectator area surrounding it;

b) of sufficient size for club management, the Duty Safety Officer and the police commander and his/her deputy (if required) and enough
staff to operate the radios, telephones, public address system, turnstile monitoring equipment and CCTV screens. There shall also
be space for others who may need from time to time to visit the room e.g. other senior officers or members of the Council and
Emergency Services;

c) well equipped with CCTV, public address system, radio and telephone facilities and, where necessary, soundproofed against
excessive noise;

d) provided with adequate lighting, temperature and ventilation control and with suitable fire extinguishers; and

e) able to serve as a command post in the event of an emergency.

A police briefing and administration room.

OFFICIAL



T/ obed

GENERAL GROUND ARRANGEMENT DRAWINGS

LIST OF DRAWINGS

Certificate Drawing
Number

Architects Drawing
Number

Location

General office in H &S

D11902 D11902- red line plan
Folder
SC02 — Ground plan N/A General office in H &S
Folder
SCol N/A General office in H &S
Folder
MS1 main stand (lower) General office in H &S
MS1
clubhouse level Folder
MS2 Ms2 main stand (upper) General office in H &S

level

Folder

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 13



2/ obed

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX 14

DOCUMENTS KEPT WITH THE GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

The following documents, whilst not part of this General Safety Certificate, are held with it:

1. Statement of Safety Officer’s duties

n

Holder’s written Statement of Event Safety Policy

3. Statement of Intent

OFFICIAL



¢) abed

NOTES

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX B



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

FIRE SAFETY AND SAFETY OF PLACES OF SPORT ACT 1987
PART Il

GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

Issued on 28™ May 2005

TO WHITBY TOWN FOOTBALL CLUB

Page 75



CONTENTS

CERTINICATE

SCHEDULE 1 (GENERAL CONDITIONS)

Interpretation

Essential Works

General Fabric Buildings and Structures
Electrical and Mechanical Installations
Proposed Alterations or Extensions
Plans

Emergency Action Notices

Storage of Equipment

SCHEDULE 2 (STAFF AND CROWD CONTROL)

Safety Officer

Stewards

Electricians

Special Police Services
Ground Control Room
Emergency Action Plans

SCHEDULE 3 (FIRST AID AND MEDICAL FACILITIES)

First Aid and Medical Facilities

SCHEDULE 4 (FIRE FIGHTING AND ALARM SYSTEMS)

Fire Fighting Equipment
General

SCHEDULE 5 (TESTS AND INSPECTIONS)

Definitions

Before the commencement of every specified activity
Every month during which a specified activity takes place
Every three months

Every six months

Every year

Every three years

General

Page 76

APPENDIX C

ok
oI e )

11

12
12
15
15
15
15

16

18
19

20
21
21
22
22
22
23
23



APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE 6 (RECORDS AND CERTIFICATES)

General 25
Log Books 25
Annual Record Sheets 26
Other Records 26
Certificates 27
EXPLANATORY NOTES
General 28
Offences and Penalties 28
Rights of Appeal 29

Page 77



APPENDIX C

FIRE SAFETY AND SAFETY OF PLACES OF SPORT ACT 1987 ~ PART 111

GENERAL SAFETY CERTIFICATE

To:  Whitby Town Football Club

WHEREAS the North Yorkshire County Council (hereinafter called “the Licensing Authority™)
received, pursuant to the Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987, from Whitby Town
Footbali Club an application dated 10" February 1999 for a General Safety Certificate for the
East Stand at the Whitby Town Football Club, Turnbull Ground, Upgang Lane, Whitby, North
Yorkshire (being a regulated stand for the purposes of the said Act).

WHEREAS the North Yorkshire County Council (hereinafter called “the Licensing Authority™)
received, pursuant to the Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987, from Whitby Town
Football Club an application dated 28" May 2005 for a General Safety Certificate for the West
Stand at the Whitby Town Football Club, Turnbull Ground, Upgang Lane, Whitby, North

Yorkshire {being a regulated stand for the purposes of the said Act).

AND WHEREAS the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the said Whitby Town Football Club
1s a person likely to be in a position to prevent contravention of the terms and conditions of the

safety certificate.

NOW the Licensing Authority in exercise of the powers conferred by Sections 27, 28 and 29 of
the Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987 and of all other enabling powers
HEREBY CERTIFIES the said Stand in respect of the use thereof whenever spectators are
present in connection with the playing of football matches at the Turnbull Ground, Upgang Lane,
Whitby from the 1* day of August 1999 SUBJECT 1o the terms and conditions contained in
Schedules 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 hereto being such as the Licensing Authority consider necessary or
expedient to secure reasonable safety in the stand when they are in use for viewing the specified

activity.

Dated the 7—5)\ 1“3 ..................

G S GRESTY

Corporate Director of Business & Environmental Services

Page 78



10.

11.

APPENDIX C

In exercise of the powers conferred by the Fire Safety and Places of Sport Act 1987, and
all other enabling powers, the Local Authority hereby issues to the Holder this General
Safety Certificate in respect of the Regulated Stand at Whitby Town Football Club.

This Certificate includes the Appendices, Schedules, Plans and drawings attached
hereto.

The words used in this Certificate and the Schedules attached hereto shall have the
meaning assigned to them by the Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987 and
Schedule 1.

The Holder shall retain control over the whole and each part of the Stands and shall take
all necessary precautions for the reasonable safety of spectators admitted to the Stands.
The responsibility for the reasonable safety of spectators in the Stands lies at all times
with the Holder who shall produce a written statement of safety policy.

The Holder shall ensure the compliance with the terms and conditions of the Certificate
at all times when the Stands are in use for a specified activity.

The Holder shall produce a plan of action to deal with emergencies in consultation with
the Police, Fire Brigade, Ambulance Service and the Local Authority. The plan of
action shall cover all reasonably foreseeable contingencies and shall identify appropriate
individuals and their respective tasks, including precautions against electrical or
mechanical failure.

The use of the Stands for spectator events under this General Safety Certificate is
restricted to Specified Activities as defined in Schedule 1, and is subject to the terms
and conditions set out in this Certificate.

The number of seated spectators to be admitted to the East Stand shall not exceed 117.
The number of standing spectators to be admitted to the East Stand shall not exceed
763. The number of spectators to be admitted to the West Stand shall not exceed 505.
A maximum of six disabled spectators and six persons accompanying/assisting them
may be admitted to the area at the front of the West Stand.

The Holder shall give 35 days notice in writing to the Licensing Authority of
forthcoming specified activities. In exceptional circumstances a lesser period of notice
will be acceptable, but under those circumstances notice shall be given in writing as
soon as is reasonably practicable.

The Holder shall provide equipment, permanent staff, stewards and others and shall
monitor, direct, guide, control and assist spectators during specified activities as set out
m Schedule 2.

The Holder shall provide first aid and medical staff, equipment, facilities and
accommodation as set out in Schedule 3.

Page 79



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

APPENDIX C

In relation to the Stands at the Turnbull Ground, the Holder shall ensure that all
buildings and structures to which spectators can gain access and all spectator
accommodation and facilities to which paying spectators are entitled to gain access,
including means of ingress and egress, and all installations, including electrical,
mechanical and heating referred to in the Certificate are at all relevant times provided
and maintained unobstructed, in good repair, and in such condition as to fulfil safely
their required functions and shall comply with the requirements of Schedule 1. The
Holder shall also control, provide, use and maintain such buildings, structures,
accommodation, facilities and installations in such a manner that spectators are not
unreasonably put at risk.

The Holder shall take all reasonable precautions to prevent the outbreak and spread of
fire, shall maintain equipment and trained staff to deal with an outbreak of fire, and shall
comply with the requirements of Schedule 4.

The Holder shall carry out the inspections and testing detailed in Schedule 5 at the
frequency indicated, or such shorter period as may be reasonably necessary to ensure the
reasonable safety of spectators, and the results of the inspections and testing shall be
recorded and, if requested to do so, submitted to the Licensing Authority.

The Holder shall keep the records specified in Schedule 6, and those records shall be
made available for inspection by the Licensing Authority’s authorised officers at all
reasonable times.

The Holder shall obtain and submit to the Licensing Authority the Certificates specified
in Schedule 6.

The appointed Safety Officer shall be a Director of Whitby Town Football Club Ltd.

The Board of Directors of the company shall set out in writing the duties of the Safety
Officer.

The Holder shall ensure that the name of the Safety Officer shall be provided in writing
to the Licensing Authority. Where any change of personnel occurs, the names of the
persons shall be supplied in writing within 48 hours to the Licensing Authority.

The Safety Officer, or the Deputy Safety Officer, if appointed, shall be a person of
sufficient competence, status and authority effectively to take responsibility for safety at
the Ground in accordance with Schedule 2, and be able to authorise and supervise safety
measures..

In accordance with Schedule 1, paragraph 5, the Holder shall give notice in writing to

the Licensing Authority with regard to any proposed alterations or extensions or change
of use within or associated with the Stand other than normal routine maintenance works.

Page 80



21,

22.

23.

APPENDIX C

This Certificate is issued without prejudice to other legislation controlling the
construction or use of sports grounds or buildings or otherwise affecting the Holder and
does not invalidate any statutory obligation upon the Holder. The specific requirements
of this Certificate shall not be regarded as the limit of the obligation placed on the
Holder to take all the necessary precautions for the reasonable safety of spectators
admitted to the Ground.

The Holder shall draw up and keep up to date, and shall submit to the Licensing
Authority, plans outlining the structures, equipment and installations as outlined in

Schedule 1, paragraph 6.

This amended Certificate will come into effect on 20" March 2006 and will be reviewed
by the Licensing Authority annually.

Page 81



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE 1

GENERAL CONDITIONS

INTERPRETATION

In this and the following Schedules where the context so admits:
“the Act” means the Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987;

“the Holder” means Whitby Town Football Club, or such other person to whom this

certificate is transferred under Section 29(5) of the Act;
“the Licensing Authority” means the North Yorkshire County Council;

“the Chief Officer of Police” means the Chief Constable of North Yorkshire Police or his
nominee or, as the case may require, the Police Officer having charge of policing the

Ground on the occasion of the specified activity;

“the Police” means any police officer on duty at or in the vicinity of the Stands and
includes a police officer from any other police force in England and Wales who may be

required to perform duty at the Ground;
“the Fire Authority” means North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service;

“the Ambulance Service” means the Chief Executive of the Tees, East and North

Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust, or such officer designated by him or her.

“paramedic” means a person who holds a current certificate of proficiency in ambulance
paramedic skills, issued by the Institute of Health Care and Development (IHCD), and
who has immediate access to the appropriate level of specialist equipment, including drug
therapy, as stipulated and approved by the relevant paramedical Steering Committee.

A paramedic crew, as a minimum, shall consist of a paramedic plus an ambulance

technician trained to IHCD standards.

Page 82



1.9

1.10

1.12

113

1.14

1.15

I.16

I.17

118

2.0

2.1

APPENDIX C

“specified activity” means the use of the Stands whenever spectators are present in

connection with the playing of first team football matches;

“steward” means a person trained, or being trained, to a recognised national standard,
employed or contracted by Whitby Town Football Club to act in accordance with the

general recommendations of the Green Guide and this Certificate.

the “East Stand” means the Stand also known as the Scratching Shed, at the Turnbull
Ground, Upgang Lane, Whitby, North Yorkshire, shown on the plan annexed hereto;

the “West Stand” means the Stand also known as the Main Stand, which provides the
majority of the seated spectator accomimodation at the ground, shown on the plan annexed
hereto.

The “Stands” means the East Stand and the West Stand.

other expressions have the same meaning as in the Act;

references to plans are references to plans annexed to this certificate;

“the Green Guide” means The Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds (Fourth Edition — first
published 1997).

“the Building Authority” means Scarborough Borough Council.

“normal lighting” means all lighting, other than escape lighting, permanently installed
throughout the sports ground. The term may include purely decorative lighting, but not
lighting installed solely for advertising purposes. Note: also known as “General

Lighting™.

ESSENTIAL WORKS

Where any test or inspection reveals a failure to comply with the requirements of this

Certificate, any necessary remedial works shall, as far as is reasonably practicable, be

Pagg 83



3.0

3.1

3.2

33

34

3.5

APPENDIX C

carried out before the date of the next specified activity. Where it is not reasonably
practicable to carry out the works, the Holder shall conduct a risk assessment to evaluate
any hazard to spectators. The results of this assessment shall be forwarded to the
Licensing Authority before the date of the next specified activity, along with details of

actions that will be taken to reduce any risk to an acceptable level.

All work carried out shall be subject to inspection by the Licensing Authority and/or the

Building Authority, and shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority.

GENERAL FABRIC BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES

Any part of the Stands which the Holder considers may be unsafe to accommodate
spectators, or may present a hazard to spectators by virtue of any defect in any part of the
structure, shall be taken out of use and be fenced off so as to prohibit spectators from
gaining access. The Duty Safety Officer shall ensure that areas affected are adequately

stewarded to prevent access.

Such crush barriers and hand railings as are provided shall comply with the ‘Green Guide’

as regards their physical characteristics and performance.

The treads of steps and stairways, and terraced areas, shall be maintained with non-slip
and even surfaces, and shall be adequately drained. The means of ingress and egress shall

be maintained in good condition and unobstructed to each part of the Stands.

No door or gate forming part of an escape route identified in the contingency plans shall
be locked by a key or fastened in such other way that it cannot easily and immediately be

opened by those using that route in an emergency.

All exit gates, unless secured in an open position, shall be staffed at all times while the

Stands are in use by the public.

No vehicles, kiosks or obstructions, other than emergency vehicles (ie Police, Fire and
Ambulance), shall be parked in any part of the Ground which could cause an obstruction

to exit routes for spectators, or to the passage of emergency vehicles, unless agreed with

Page 84



3.6

3.7

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

APPENDIX C

the Chief Constable or the Senior Police Officer on duty. Overhead cables should have
more than four metres (13 feet) clearance above the ground where vehicular access 1s

required.

Fire-fighting equipment shall be provided and maintained in accordance with Schedule 4.

Clearly printed exit signs, conforming with the Health and Safety (Safety Signs and
Signals) Regulations 1996 and the Green Guide, shall be exhibited and maintained at all
exits before and during the use of the Stands. The exit signs shall be kept unobstructed

and legible at all ime.

ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL INSTALLATIONS

The electrical installation within or associated with the Stands shall be maintained in
accordance with the latest issue of the BS7671/ LE.E. Wiring Regulations and the Guide
to Safety at Sports Grounds (the ‘Green Guide’).

Any new electrical installation work carried out within or associated with the Ground
shall be in accordance with the current British Standard 7671 (Institution of Electrical
Engineers (L.LE.E.) Wiring Regulations). The work shall be undertaken by a “qualified
person” as described in Schedule 5 Clause 1.2 and be subject to a relevant completion

certification.

A diagram of the main electrical circuit shall be fixed permanently in a position easily
accessible to the technical staff. All switch and control gear shall be clearly labelled to

mdicate the circuits which they control.

All cables and conductors of wiring systems shall be sited so that they are, as far as
practicable, inaccessible to the public. Cable which is accessible shall be enclosed
throughout in a protective covering of material which has sufficient strength to resist
mechanical damage — for example, screwed metal conduit, metal trunking, mineral

insulated metal sheathed cables, or armoured cables.

Page 85



4.5

4.6

4.7

APPENDIX C

Normal lighting shall be provided and shall be kept illuminated within those parts of the
Stands and along all exit routes from the Stands to any gate in use for exiting the Ground

where there is inadequate natural daylight during specified activities.

Non-maintained emergency lighting shail be provided during specified activities where

there is inadequate natural daylight.

The system of emergency lighting should be installed in accordance with BS 5266, Part 1.
The system should be capable of maintaining the necessary level of illumination required
under the British Standard for a period of three hours from the time of failure of the
normal supply. The emergency lighting should operate automatically on the failure of the

normal lighting.

An alternative electricity supply, which functions for a minimum of three hours in the
event of failure of the normal supply, shall be provided to the following installations:-

~  Public address system

- Emergency lighting

- Emergency telephone

- First aid room

- All rooms identified for use as part of the emergency plan.

NOTE: Where a generator is used to provide the alternative supply, the start up time of

the generator should not exceed ten seconds.

The electricity supply to the public address shall be such as to ensure continuous

operation and be powered by one of the following:-

1 Service mains supply; and
i Standby generator
OR

i Service mains supply; and

ii A UPS or other auxiliary power supply with a capacity to operate the complete
sound system for a minimum period of three hours. The auxiliary power supply
system installed shall comply with the following requirements:-
(a)} Automatic changeover onto the auxiliary power source on service mains fail;

(b) If there is no facility for automatic changeover onto the auxiliary supply, there

Page 86



4.8

4.9

5.0
5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

APPENDIX C

shall be an audible or visual indication that the service mains has failed, together
with an easily accessible manual changeover switch to the auxiliary power system
which shall be of a permanent wiring system arrangement;

(¢) the auxiliary supply shall have an on-board rectifier/charger system, together
with power source condition monitoring equipment, (for example, voltage, current

and temperature).

The Holder shall draw up a contingency plan to allow for the use of the Middle Room in
the Dressing Room Block to be used as a Ground Control Room. Public address and
communications systems shall be provided and maintained to British Standards 6259. A
facility shall be provided in the Ground Control Room whereby the Police or Duty Safety
Officer can override and use the public address system at any time. The public address
system shall enable the Chief Officer of Police, or the Duty Safety Officer, to

communicate with all spectators in the Ground

The Holder shall provide lightning protection to floodlighting columns and to the Stands
in accordance with BS6651:1992 where not already provided.

PROPOSED ALTERATIONS OR EXTENSIONS

The Holder shall, as soon as is practicable, consult the Licensing Authority with regard to

any proposed change of use, alterations or extensions within, or associated with the

Stands, other than normal routine maintenance works.
PLANS

The Holder shall provide to the Licensing Authority, when so requested, such plans and
technical details as the Licensing Authority may require, as detailed by the Licensing

Authority.

Where the Holder is required to submit a plan to the Licensing Authority, under the terms
of the Certificate, those plans must be drawn up and submitted in accordance with

Licensing Authority requirements,

Pagg 87



6.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

APPENDIX C

Where approved alterations have been made to the Stands, the Holder shall arrange to
supply a new set of plans of the Stands in accordance with Licensing Authority

requirements, incorporating the details of the alterations.

EMERGENCY ACTION NOTICES

Notices shall be available in the Control Room, detailing the procedure for calling the

cmergency services.

STORAGE OF EQUIPMENT

The storage of hazardous materials, including fuels, fertilisers, weed killer, paints and
combustible materials, and the use of equipment, must not jeopardise the safety of

spectators in the Stands.

Page; 88



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.0

APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE 2
STAFF AND CROWD CONTROL

SAFETY OFFICER

The Holder shall provide to the Licensing Authority the name of the Safety Officer and if
appointed the name of the Deputy Safety Officer. The Holder shall notify the Licensing
authority of any changes m these appointments. The Holder shall ensure on every
occasion when a specified activity takes place in the Ground that the person designated in
writing by the Holder as the Safety Officer, or a deputy similarly designated, is in
attendance. The Duty Safety Officer shall be responsible for safety in the Ground and

shall have sufficient status and authority to perform that function.

The Safety Officer shall be responsible for ensuring that checks, inspections, testing,
training, recording, remedial works, and all matters relating to the Safety Certificate are

carried out promptly and effectively.

The Safety Officer shall examine and sign all records that the Holder is required to

maintain, and shall countersign all records required by Schedule 6.

The Duty Safety Officer shall be responsible on behalf of the Holder for safety matters

during and inspections and tests immediately prior to, and after, every specified activity.

The Duty Safety Officer shall be known to all those involved in the safety of spectators in

the Stands, and shall be equipped such that he can be immediately contacted at any time.
STEWARDS

The Holder shall ensure the attendance at the Ground of at least four fully trained
Stewards, not including the Duty Safety Officer.
These Stewards shall be deployed around the Ground at such places from which they can

monitor the crowd for any signs of distress or discomfort.

Page 89



2.1.3

2.2

2.3

APPENDIX C

In addition to those Stewards referred to in paragraph 2.1.1 above, there shall be at least
one further Steward per 250 of the anticipated attendance at the Ground up to 1,000. For
crowds of over 1,000 there shall be at least six Stewards deployed in accordance with this
paragraph. Furthermore there shall be a further Steward per 250 of the anticipated
attendance. The Stewards shall patrol those parts of the ground to which they have been
deployed. In particular the Steward or Stewards deployed to patrol the West side of the
ground will ensure that the accommodation provided for the use of disabled spectators and

of those accompanying or assisting them, 1s not used by other spectators.

The Safety Officer, Duty Safety Officer or ground staff based in the Stadium Control
Room shall not be regarded as Stewards for the purpose of calculating stewarding
numbers. Members of the ground staff who, during the specified activity, have significant
responsibilities not associated with the safety of spectators, shall not be employed as
Stewards. This will include staff employed as:-

(a) turnstile operators;

(b) catering staff;

(c) grounds maintenance staft;

(d) car park attendants.

The attendance of Police Officers will not affect the requirements for Stewards as detailed

in this Schedule.

At all times whilst spectators have access to the Stands there shall be at least one steward
deployed in each Stand. Where the Holder expects more than 250 spectators to use the

Stand there shall be at least two stewards deployed in the Stand.

The Holder shall ensure that the safety stewards are:-

(a) Fit and capable of carrying out their duties;

(b) Properly trained and instructed,;

(c) Readily identifiable by dress, such as uniform, weatherproof jacket or tabard. Arm
bands are not acceptable;

(d) Provided with instructions as to their tasks/duties;

(e} Aged not less than 18;

(f) Provided with written instructions as to the action to be taken in the event of an
emergency.

Page;90



24

2.5

APPENDIX C

The Holder shall provide relief stewards, as necessary, to ensure that an adequate number

of stewards are on duty throughout the specified activity.

Stewards shall:-

(a) Monitor the crowd in the Stands for any sign of overcrowding or other distress in the
crowd, and report any concerns to the Safety Officer;

(b) Under the direction of the Safety Officer, or the Senior Steward, if any is appointed,
prevent overcrowding in any area of the Stands;

(¢) Ensure that gangways, exits and escape routes are kept clear, and staff such exit doors
and gates in the Stands as are not open continuously while spectators are in the Stands;

(d) Identify and investigate any incident or occurrence among the spectators which may
affect spectator safety, reporting their findings to the Safety Officer;

{e) Know the location of, and be able to operate effectively, the fire-fighting equipment at
the Ground;

{(f) Provide basic emergency first aid;

(g) Be fully conversant with any methods or signals used to alert staff that an emergency
has arisen, including the operation of any fire alarm;

(h) Be capable of recognising potential fire hazards and suspect packages, reporting such
findings immediately to the Safety Officer;

(i} Comply promptly with any instructions given in an emergency by the Safety Officer;

(i) Remain at their allocated locations as instructed, unless authorised, or instructed fo do
otherwise, by the Safety Officer;

(k) Report to the Safety Officer any damage or defect which is likely fo pose a threat to
spectator safety;

(1) Ensure that the safety of spectators is not compromised by the presence in the Stands
of any item, especially any bottle, can or glass or other rubbish or debris which may
cause a hazard or fire risk.

(m)Be aware of the action to be taken on discovery of a fire or, in the event of any other
emergency, including the method of calling the Fire Brigade;

{n) Assist, as instructed, in the evacuation of the Stands or act as directed by the Duty
Safety Officer or the Police where appropriate. Stewards shall be aware of the
location of any assembly points, and shall be familiar with all escape routes;

{o) Patrol the Stands so as to be available to spectators in the Stands, to deal with any

emergencies, to raise the alarm and to take the necessary immediate action.

Page 91



3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

APPENDIX C

ELECTRICIANS

The Holder shall ensure the availability within 30 minutes at a specified activity of a
person employed by the Holder qualified to deal with all matters relating to the electrical
services within the regulated Stands. His/her whereabouts shall be known to the Safety

Officer at all times.

SPECIAL POLICE SERVICES

Thirty-five days prior to any specific activity, or such shorter period as the Chief Officer
of Police may accept, the Holder shall request the Chief Officer of Police to provide an
adequate number of police officers for the provision of special police services within the
Ground.

That adequate number of Police Officers shall be determined by the Chief Officer of
Police, in consultation with the Holder. In accordance with Section 15(1} of the Police
Act 1964, the provision of special Police services shall be subject to the payment to the

Police Authority of charges on such scales as may be determined by the Police Authority.

GROUND CONTROL ROOM

The Ground Control Room shall be permanently staffed during a specified activity.

EMERGENCY ACTION PLANS

The emergency action plans shall be readily available to all staff and stewards at all times,
and in particular the Holder shall ensure that each member of staff and each steward

receives a personal copy of such instructions.

Pages92



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE 3

FIRST AID AND MEDICAL FACILITIES

A First Aid room, suitably equipped to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority, shall
be provided in the Ground and maintained for the use of persons attending the specified

activity.

The First Aid room shall be accessible to First Aid personnel and the public from every
part of the Ground and to ambulances, and there shall be suitable sign-posting from the

Stands and other parts of the Ground.

The Holder shall clean, heat, light, ventilate and maintain the First Aid room, which shall
be used solely for First Aid purposes. The Holder shall ensure that all appropriate

standards of hygiene are maintained.

Instruction Notices for contacting the emergency services shall be displayed in the First

Aid room.

At an event where the number of spectators in the Ground is expected to exceed 2,000, a
crowd doctor, trained and experienced in immediate care, shall be present. This doctor’s

first duty will be to the crowd.

If a crowd of less than 2,000 is anticipated, arrangements shall be in place to summon
immediately a suitably trained and experienced crowd doctor to deal with medical

emergencies. This arrangement shall be known to those stationed in the control point.
The medical practitioners, when in attendance, shall:

(a) be at the Ground before the start of the specified activity;

(b) remain until at least half an hour after the end of the specified activity.

Page 93



1.6

1.7

1.8

APPENDIX C

The whereabouts of the medical practitioner shall be known to the Duty Safety Officer
and to First Aid and Ambulance staff, who shall be able to make immediate contact with

him or her.

The Holder shall ensure the attendance at a specified activity of a number of persons
appropriately qualified in first aid, who shall be distributed in such a manner as to have
access to the Stands. There will be one first-aider per 1,000 anticipated spectators,

subject to a minimum of two.

First Aiders should:-

i be aged not less than 16 years;

it have no other duties or responsibilities;

i1 be in post at the ground prior to spectators being admitted;

v remain in position until all spectators have left the Ground;

v be holders of the standard certificate of first aid issued by the voluntary aid societies
to people working as ‘First Aiders’ under the Health and Safety (First Aid)
Regulations 1981.

The Holder shall identify a covered location to be used as an Emergency Casualty Centre
to be used for triage and accommodation for the injured in the event of a large scale
emergency. The location should be adjoining, or as near as possible, to the First Aid
room, and should be exclusively available for the above uses in the event of such
emergency. The Holder shall provide sufficient signs to indicate the location of the
Emergency Casualty Centre, such signs to be kept in the Ground Control Room during

the course of each specified activity.

Page1$4



APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE 4

FIRE FIGHTING AND ALARM SYSTEMS

The under-mentioned portable fire fighting equipment is to be provided and maintained in the

location described:

1.0

1.1

FIRE FIGHTING EQUIPMENT

Portable fire fighting equipment shall be provided during a specified activity and located

in the positions determined and approved by the Licensing Authority.

Portable fire extinguishers shall comply with the current British Standard BS 5423, and
are to have British Approvals for Fire Equipment (BAFE) certification under the British
Standards Institute’s ‘Kitemark’ Scheme.  Extinguishers shall be installed and

maintained in accordance with the current British Standard.

All extinguishers should be hung on a bracket or shelf so that the handle or other

carrying device is about one metre above floor level.

Where necessary, due to possible vandalism, the extinguishers may be located in

appropriate cabinets.

Extinguishers shall be sited so as not to cause obstruction, and shall not be placed above
or close to heating appliances. They shall be protected against heat or cold, and, where
necessary, shall contain a suitable anti-freeze agent as recommended by the

manufacturer.

After accidental or malicious discharge, fire extinguishers shall be recharged and left in

working order before the next specified activity.

All extinguishers are to be periodically inspected, maintained and tested by a competent

person in accordance with British Standard Code of Practice 5306: Part 3: 1980.

Page 95



APPENDIX C

2.0 GENERAL

2.1 All instances of emergencies are to be directed in the first instance to the Ground

Control Room.

Page;96



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE §

TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

DEFINITIONS

The Holder shall ensure that the following tests and inspections are carried out on the
occasions, or within the periods, specified, or on such other occasions when requested to
do so by the Licensing Authority. Any defects shall be remedied before any specitied
activity takes place and shall be recorded in the log book or inspection record, as

appropriate.

In this Schedule, a ‘qualified person’ in relation to the testing and certification of electrical
systems and installations shall be one of the following:-

- a Chartered Electrical Engineer

- aMember of the Electrical Contractors’ Association

- an approved contractor of the National Inspection Council for Electrical Installation

Contracting.

In this Schedule, a ‘qualified person’ in relation to the inspection, testing and certification

of the general fabric and structures shall be one of the following:-

a Chartered Architect

a Chartered Civil Engineer

a Chartered Structural Engineer

a Chartered Surveyor (Building Surveying Division)

In this Schedule, a ‘qualified person’ in relation to the testing, inspection or certification of

fire fighting equipment, shall be a Fire Protection Engineer.

In this Schedule, a ‘competent person’ in relation to the testing and certification of
mechanical systems and installations shall be one of the foHowing:-
- a Chartered Mechanical/Building Services Engineer

- a Boiler Insurance Company

Pagg 97



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.0

3.1

3.2

APPENDIX C

-~ an approved contractor of the Heating and Ventilating Contractors’ Association

BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF EVERY SPECIFIED ACTIVITY

Any generator and associated engine shall be tested in accordance with the manufacturers’
instructions by experienced, trained persons, acting in accordance with a written testing
procedure and reference limits for results taken not more than 48 hours prior to a specified
activity. It should include a simulated mains failure test with the generator taking up its
prescribed load within ten seconds. The results of such tests shall be recorded in a log
book.

The public address system shall be tested in accordance with the methods laid down in BS
7443 not more than 48 hours prior to a specified activity (including a test from the

secondary source of power supply) and the results recorded in a log book.

The emergency lighting systems, self contained and central battery, shall have a visual
check in accordance with methods laid down in BS 5266: Part 1 with results recorded in a

log book.

All facilities to be used by spectators in the Stands, including fences, viewing terraces,
stand seats, crush barriers, perimeter fences, gates and balustrades, shall be inspected to
ensure that they are safe and fit for use and, in particular, all exit gates shall be tested to

ensure that they open freely, and the results recorded in a log book.

EVERY MONTH DURING WHICH A SPECIFIED ACTIVITY TAKES PLACE

Any generator and associated engine used to provide alternative supplies shall be tested by
a qualified person. The generator shall be started under simulated mains failure and tested
on FULL LOAD for not less than one hour. The results of the test shall be recorded in a
log book.

The emergency lighting systems, self contained and central battery, shall be tested in
accordance with methods laid down in BS 5266: Part 1, with results recorded in a log
book.

Page,98



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

APPENDIX C

EVERY THREE MONTHS

Auxiliary power systems such as uninterruptible power supply (UPS) shall be tested under
stimulated mains fail, either by a qualified person or in accordance with the manufacturers’

instructions. The results of such tests shall be recorded in a log book

EVERY SIX MONTHS

The emergency lighting systems, self contained and central battery, shall be tested by a
qualified person in accordance with the methods laid down in BS 5266: Part 1, with results
recorded in a log book. A certificate with the test results shall be submitted to the

Licensing Authority.

EVERY YEAR

Any generator and associated engine used to provide alternative supplies shall be tested by
a qualified person and a certificate to the effect that they are in efficient working order

shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority at least once in every 12 months.

Lightning protection systems shall be tested by a specialist contractor in accordance with

BS 6651. A certificate with the test results shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority.

Any public address system shall be tested by a qualified person, and the results recorded in
a log book. A certificate confirming that they are in a satisfactory condition shall be

submitted to the Licensing Authority at least once in every 12 months.

The following shall be inspected by a person qualified to do so and in accordance with any
appropriate British Standard or Code of Practice and the results shall be recorded on
annual record of inspection sheets, and, where appropriate, this shall be accompanied by

reports or certificates from the person carrying out the inspection:-

i all fire fighting equipment;
i1 avisual inspection of all crush barriers, balustrades and handrails;

i the general fabric and structure of the Stands, including the condition of all standing

Page 99



6.5

7.0

7.1

1.2

8.0

8.1

APPENDIX C

surfaces, seats, steps, stairs, ramps, doors, gates, fences, boundary walls, and any

other structures within and associated with the Stands.

The following electrical installations, namely:-

- all installations associated with the Stands;

- any lighting along routes to and from the Stands and any exit from the Ground
including any emergency exit;

- the installations contained in the main switch-room

- and any installation associated with any room used as part of the contingency plan,

shall be inspected and tested and a certificate in the form prescribed in the current edition

of the British Standard 7671 (Regulations for Electrical Installations issued by the

Institution of Electrical Engineers), shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority not later

than three months before the expiry date of the current certificate, or at such other time as

may be specified in writing by the Licensing Authority. The certificate shall confirm that

the 1nstallation is in a safe working condition and shall be signed by a qualified person.

EVERY THREE YEARS

The emergency lighting systems, self contained and central battery, shall be tested by a
qualified person in accordance with the methods laid down in BS 5266: Part 1, with results
recorded in a log book. A certificate with the test results shall be submitted to the
Licensing Authority.

All crush barriers, balustrades and hand rails shall be tested by a qualified person to ensure
that they meet the requirements of the current guide to Safety at Sports Grounds, the
results to be recorded, and shall be accompanied by reports or certificates from the persons

carrying out the testing
GENERAL

Any inspection undertaken by the Licensing Authority under Section 35 of the Act or

otherwise, shall not lessen the obligations of the Holder under the provisions of the

Certificate.

Page 100



8.2

APPENDIX C

At any reasonable time, at the request of, and within the time specified by, the Licensing
Authority, a Certificate of satisfaction showing that all or any part of the Stands is
adequate for the use that it serves, shall be obtained by the Holder and made available for
inspection by the Licensing Authority. The Certificate shall be signed by one of the

following:-
i a Chartered Structural Engineer;
i1 aChartered Civil Engineer, or

it a Chartered Surveyor (Building Surveying Division).

The Certtficate, in so far as it is possible, shall state that the Stands, or parts thereof, have

been designed and built in accordance with relevant British Standard Codes of Practice.

Page 101



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE 6

RECORDS AND CERTIFICATES

GENERAL

The Holder shall ensure that all records of inspection, reports, certificates and log books
shall be maintained in accordance with this Schedule and Schedule 5, and shall be
supplied to, or made available for inspection by, the Licensing Authority on request.

The Holder shall keep all records and certificates for a minimum period of six years.

Each record shall specify the name, status and qualifications of any person carrying out

the test or inspection or remedial work.

LOG BOOKS

The Holder shall maintain a log book detailing the results of the inspection of:-
i Public address system as specified in Schedule 5, paragraphs 2.2 and 6.3.

i Emergency lighting, self contained and central battery as specified in Schedule 5,

paragraphs 2.3, 3.2, 5.1 and 7.1.
iti ~ Generator and engine as specified in Schedule 5, paragraphs 2.1, 3.1 and 6.1.
iv  Any auxiliary power system as specified in Schedule 5, paragraph 4.1.

v All facilities to be used by spectators as specified in Schedule 5, paragraph 2.4.

Page 102



APPENDIX C

ANNUAL RECORD SHEETS

The Holder shall maintain annual record sheets as specified in Schedule 5, paragraph 6,
and shall forward copies of these to the Licensing Authority no later than 31% October in

each year.

OTHER RECORDS

The Holder shall ensure that the following additional records are kept:-

i A record of the number of spectators admitted to the Ground on every occasion

when a specified activity takes place.

11 A record of the anticipated number of spectators for each specified activity, such
record to be made at least 48 hours prior to the specified activity to which the

record relates.

iti A record of all training of Stewards, and instruction given and exercises held, such

record to include the following matters:-

(a) Date and time of instruction and exercise
(b) Duration

(¢} Name of person giving instruction

(d) Names of persons receiving instruction

(&) Nature of instruction or exercise

Where stewards are not employed by the Holder, the Holder shall satisfy himself
that the Stewards have been adequately trained, and shall obtain copies of the

training records of Stewards deployed at the Ground.
iv A record of any accident or incident which causes injury, other than a footballing

injury, which is brought to the attention of the Holder and which occurs whilst the

Ground 1s in use for a specified activity.

Pageg 103



5.0

5.1

APPENDIX C

v A record of the names of the Stewards and Duty Safety Officer at each specified

activity.

vi A record of details, including attendance, of each training session given to staff and

stewards.

vil A record of the trained first aiders and medical practitioner present at a specified

activity as specified in Schedule 3, paragraphs 1.5 and 1.7.

CERTIFICATES

The Holder shall submit the following certificates to the Licensing Authority:-

1 Emergency lighting battery test report as specified in Schedule 5, paragraph 5.1 once

every year,

ii A certificate of inspection of the lightning protection system as specified in Schedule

5, paragraph 6.2 once every 12 months.

i A certificate of inspection of the public address installation as specified in Schedule

5, paragraph 6.3 once every 12 months.

iv A certificate of emergency lighting system inspection as specified in Schedule 3,

paragraph 7.1 once every three years.

v A certificate of inspection of the electrical installation as specified in Schedule 5,

paragraph 6.5 once every 12 months.

vi Any certificate issued following testing of crush barriers as specified in Schedule 5,

paragraph 7.2.

Page 164



APPENDIX C

THE FIRE SAFETY AND SAFETY OF PLACES OF SPORT ACT 1987 —

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

PART 11

EXPLANATORY NOTES

GENERAL

It is important to know that guidelines on the safety of spectators at sports grounds, where
sporting events of all kinds are held, are contained in the book “Guide to Safety at Sports
Grounds” (4™ Edition 1997), obtainable from Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. The
following points are particularly important, but reference should be made to the Act itself

for authoritative information.

OFFENCES AND PENALTIES

Section 36(1) of the Act states:-

Subject to sub-sections (2), (5) and (6) below, it is an offence if:-

i Spectators are admitted to a regulated stand at a sports ground on an occasion when

no Safety Certificate which covers the use of the Stand is in operation for it, or

ii Any term or condition of a Safety Certificate for a regulated stand at a sports ground is
contravened, any responsible person, and, if a Safety Certificate is in operation, the

Holder of the Certificate, shall be guilty of an offence.

The penalty is, on summary conviction, a fine not exceeding the statutory maximum, or,
on conviction on mdictment, to a fine or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding two

years, or both, or as subsequently amended by statute.

Section 36(7) states:

Any person who:-

i in purporting to carry out a requirement under Section 28(11) or, for the purpose of

procuring a Safety Certificate or the cancellation, amendment, replacement or transfer

Page 105



3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

6.1

APPENDIX C

of a Safety Certificate, knowingly or recklessly makes a false statement or knowingly
or recklessly produces, furnishes, signs or otherwise makes use of a document

containing a false statement, or

i fails to give a notice required by Section 32(1), or

ili intentionally obstructs any person in the exercise of powers under Section 35, or
without reasonable excuse refuses, neglects or otherwise fails to answer any question

asked by any person in the exercise of such powers,

shall be guilty of an offence and liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding

level S on the standard scale, or as subsequently amended by statute.

Section 28 of the Act coves the process of issuing Certificates and Section 28(11) refers to

information and plans which the Local Authority can request of the applicant.

In accordance with Section 32 of the Act, you must inform the Licensing Authority in
advance if vou are proposing to alter or extend the Stands or their installations, if the
alteration or extension is likely to affect the safety of persons in the Stands. The Holder
of this Certificate shall, before carrying out any of the proposals, give notice of the

proposals to the Licensing Authority.

By virtue of Section 35 of the Act, authorised officers have power to inspect the Stands to
which the Act applies to see whether conditions therein have changed to the extent that

the safety measures for spectators are diminished.

RIGHTS OF APPEAL

The Act gives rights of appeal against decisions of the Licensing Authority or the
inclusion of any of the terms or conditions of this Certificate. The periods within which
appeals must be lodged and the procedures to be followed are laid down in the Safety of

Places of Sport Regulations 1988.

Page 196



	Agenda
	4 Procedure for meeting
	5 Cancellation of the General Safety Certificate for Whitby Town Football Club
	Appendix A - General Safety Certificate
	Appendix B - Index of Key Locations
	Appendix C - General Safety Certificate_redacted




